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1 41,000 57,265 2,347,882,906 67,050 2,749,050,000| 10.23
2 246,000 5,153 1,267,659,047 4,190( 1,030,740,000 3.84
3 41,000 15,047 616,908,511 22,075 905,075,000 3.37
4 41,000 20,662 847,123,835 21,600 885,600,000 3.30
5 246,000 2,967 729,817,805 2,999 737,754,000 2.75
6 41,000 14,214 582,779,662 15,230 624,430,000 2.32
7 82,000 6,471 530,587,532 7,142 585,644,000 2.18
8 164,000 3,342 548,047,386 3,550 582,200,000 2.17
9 41,000 9,549 391,492,889 12,160 498,560,000 1.86
10 123,000 3,505 431,170,473 3,611 444,153,000 1.65
11 41,000 10,841 444,460,646 10,830 444,030,000 1.65
12 164,000 3,187 522,732,782 2,696 442,144,000 1.65
13 41,000 9,382 384,676,185 10,065 412,665,000 1.54
14 82,000 2,207 180,994,548 4,945 405,490,000 1.51
15 205,000 1,884 386,295,329 1,859 380,992,500 1.42
16 41,000 6,839 280,406,271 9,150 375,150,000 1.40
17 41,000 7.783 319,117,880 8,968 367,688,000 1.37
18 41,000 8.603 352,735,743 8,744 358,504,000 1.33
19 41,000 10,259 420,603,859 7,887 323,367,000 1.20
20 41,000 6,774 277,739,859 7,542 309,222,000 1.15
21 205,000 1,489 305,197,024 1,432 293,560,000 1.09
22 41,000 4,717 193,385,716 7,140 292,740,000 1.09
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24 41,000 7,148 293,063,246 6,518 267,238,000 0.99
26 41,000 5,248 215,173,137 6,400 262,400,000| 0.98
27 98,400 2,604 256,243,994 2,604 256,233,600 0.95
28 41,000 8,116 332,742,937 6,040 247,640,000| 0.92
29 164,000 1,001 178,893,989 1,480 242,720,000 0.90
30 82,000 3,208 263,093,987 2,942 241,244,000 0.90
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2019 30

2016 225
2019 30

4 24,341,537

36,637

280,564

166,336

1,418

24,826,492

9 (18,087)
(5,611)

12 (691)
11 (15,009)
(3,190)

(653)

(1,280)
(3,209)

(47,730)

24,778,762

2019 12 19

J.P.
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2018 30

2016 225
2018 30

4 3,005,757
7,406

2,400,748

207,919

116,488

799,823

826

6,538,967

4 (1,229)
9 (18,642)
(1,134)
12 (5,531)
11 (23,398)
(3,394)

(554)

(1,280)
(3,246,218)

(7,660)

(3,309, 040)

3,229,927

2018 12 21

J.P.
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2018 2019 30

2016 225
2019 30

7 (2,437,806)

387,610

(2,050,196)

9 (30,866)
12 (3,645)
11 (14,661)
(2,528)

(402)

(721)

13 (4,150)
10 (317)

(2,715)

(60,005)

14 (18,794)

(2,128,995)

(59,362)

(2,188,357)
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2017 2018 30

2016 225
2018 30

7 6,868,142

451,443

7,319,585

9 (36,905)
12 (2,280)
11 (16,744)
(2,538)

1,272)

(745)

13 (5,215)
10 (316)

(4,064)

(70,079)

14 (178,170)

7,071,336

(69,139)

7,002,197
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30

2016 225
2019 30

3,229,927
36,836,162

(13,098,970)

23,737,192

(2,188,357)

24,778,762
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30

2016 225
2018 30

23,336,643
50,976,935

(78,085,848)

(27,108,913)

7,002,197

3,229,927
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2019

94/280

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
2016 225
2019 30

(2,188,357)

18,794

(387,610)

59,362

(2,497,811)

(21,335,781)

(1,229)
3,199,980

(3,260,081)

(49,848)

(23,944,770)

(59,362)

358,379

(23,645,753)

36,836,162
(13,098,970)

(18,794)

23,718,398

72,645

207,919

280,564
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30

2016
2018

225
30

7,002,197

178,170
(451,443)

69,139

6,798,063

20,177,813
1,193

(3,108,809)
3,190,645

(39,830)

27,019,075

(69,139)

474,265

27,424,201

50,976,935
(78,085,848)

(178,170)

(27,287,083)

137,118

70,801

207,919
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1.
AIFMD
EEA AIFM
17
225 2016 TOPIX
201609
2016 225
13
BNP
BNP
13
2016 TOPIX 2016 20
2016 225 2016 10 24
11 27
JPX 400 225
TOPIX
JPX 400 225

FDI

2014 12
NON-EEA
2019
2016 JPX 400
2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX
2018 S&P 500
BNP
2016 JPX 400

2018 S&P 500

500
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2016 26

AlIF

30
2016

201612

2016 JPX 400

2016 10 14
2018

500

TOPIX



500

TOPIX
400

500

@

IFRS

2018 S&P 500

J

500

TOPIX
PX 400

225

TOP

TOPIX

NAV

2018 S&P 500

2018 S&P 500
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225
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2018

IFRS 2014 2018
IFRS IAS 39
IAS 39

2018 IFRS IAS 39
2018 30

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 15 2014 2018

IFRS 16 2016 2019

IFRIC 23 2017 2019
IAS 12

IFRIC 23
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b)

O

IFRS IFRS

FDI

(ii)

J.P.

NAV

(iv)
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©

FDI FDI FDI

FDI

@

FDI

FDI

©)

®

@

Q)

Q)

2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500 2018 S&P 500

(ii)

101/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FDI

@

@

()

2019 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018

S&P 500 2019 30 2016 JPX
400 (1)
(i) 1AS 32

)

15

Q)
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Q)

€))

FDI

2016 TOPIX 2019 30

10,566,401

10,566,401

(1,231)

(1,231)

FDI
105,651,700

2016 225 2019 30

24,338,763

2,774

24,341,537
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FDI
243,415,370
2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30
27,134
14
1
27,149
* 2018 11 27
**500
FDI
271,490
2016 JPX 400 2019 30
15,051,097
187
15,051,284
FDI
150,512,840
2018 30
2016 TOPIX 2018 30
18,052,718
18,052,718
(9,463)
(9,463)
FDI
180,432,550
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2016 225

FDI
30,045,280

2016 JPX 400

FDI
167,473,000

(®)

©

@

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 30

3,005,757

3,005,757

(1,229)

(1,229)

2018 30

16,752,880

16,752,880

(5.580)

(5,580)
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2019 30 2018 30
Sep 2016 2016 2018 2016
2019 30 TOPIX 225 S&P 500 * JPX 400
AA- 10,820,198 24,622,102 27,147 15,337,423
A 90,540 166,336 185 62,301
* 2018 11 27
Sap 2016 2016 2016
2018 30 TOPIX 225 JPX 400
AA- 18,385,421 3,212,446 16,946,138
A 129,948 116,488 108,958
©)
2016 TOPIX
2019 30
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1,231
2,487
9,264
788
8,264
20,646
2,381
1,179
3,148
2,602

10,896,740

10,948,730

2016 225
2019 30

5,611
15,009
653
18,087
691
3,190
1,280
3,209

24,778,762

24,826,492

2018 S&P 500 *
2019 30

23

43

64
12
18

33
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28,206

28,408

2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400
2019 30

3,890
9,807
716
10,623
915
3,226
2,612
6,309

7,257

45,355
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2016 TOPIX
2018 30

9,463
3,624
19,655
689
12,318
27,074
2,586
1,179
6,398
2,929

18,487,715

18,573,630

2016 225
2018 30

1,229
1,134
23,398
554
18,642
5,531
3,394
1,280
3,246,218
7,660

3,229,927

6,538,967

2016 JPX 400
2018 30

5,580
3,796

17,667
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618
13,343
1,137
3,430
2,598

7,155

55,324
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2019

30

2016 TOPIX
10,566,401 10,566,401
10,566,401 10,566,401
(1,231) (1,231)
(1,231) (1,231)
2016 225

24,338,763 24,338,763
2,774 2,774
24,341,537 24,341,537

2018 S&P 500 *
27,134 27,134
14 14
1
27,148 27,149
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**%

* 2018 11 27

**500

2016 JPX 400

15,051,097 15,051,097
187 187
15,051,284 15,051,284
2018 30
2016 TOPIX
18,052,718 18,052,718
18,052,718 18,052,718
(9,463) (9,463)
(9,463) (9,463)
2016 225
3,005,757 3,005,757
3,005,757 3,005,757
(1,229) (1,229)
(1,229) (1,229)
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400

16,752,880 16,752,880
16,752,880 16,752,880
(5,580) (5,580)
(5,580) (5,580)

IFRS

FDI

113/280
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2019

2019

2018

2018

30

30
2016 TOPIX
2016 225

2016 JPX 400

2018 S&P 500

2018 11 27

30

30
2016 TOPIX
2016 225

2016 JPX 400

2016 TOPIX

2016 225
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FDI
328,021 (1,231)
428,062 2,774
350,548 187
1,002 14
FDI
441,990 (9,463)
224,100 (1,229)
296,374 (5,580)
2019 30
424,140
(39,409)
(1,883,350)
8,232
(1,490, 387)
2019 30
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(276,680)
(30,152)
(2,134,978)

4,004

(2,437,806)

2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30

2,445
25
982

16

3,468

2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400 2019 30

(82,532)
(41,657)
(1,539,028)

5,767

(1,657,450)

2016 TOPIX 2018 30

1,254,874
28,044
(90, 483)

(10,568)

1,181,867
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2016 225 2018 30

6,934,766
229,830
(295, 261)

(1,193)

6,868,142

2016 JPX 400 2018 30

642,994
24,979
(532,572)

(6,117)

129,284

2016 JPX 400
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500

NAV

NAV

NAV

2019 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018
S&P 500 2019 30
2016 JPX 400
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2018 2019 30
2016 TOPIX 2019 30
10,624,500 38,891
2,750,000
(6,400,000)
6,974,500 38,891
10,837,077 59,663
1.55 1.53
2016 225 2019 30
109,000 39,423
1,215,000 413,000
(144,300) (449,400)
1,179,700 3,023
24,715,217 63,545
20.95 21.02
2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30
145,100 2,223
(119, 685)
25,415 2,223
27,996 209
1.10 0.09
* 2018 11 27
2016 JPX 400 2019 30
1,127,400
1,127,400
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2018 30
2016 TOPIX
2016 225

2016 JPX 400

@ ®

2016 TOPIX

©
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15,406,976

13.67

2016 225
2018 30 2016 JPX 400
2017 2018 30
2018 30
17,303,000
2,560,000 38,891
(9,238,500)
10,624,500 38,891
18,421,107 66,608
1.73 1.71
2018 30
1,178,000
2,110,000 343,023
(3.179,000) (303,600)
109,000 39,423
2,362,401 867,526
21.67 22.01
2018 30
85,400
1,989,000
(947,000)
1,127,400
17,051,803
15.12
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2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
2018 S&P 500
@) 2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV 0.02
2018 S&P 500
NAV
0.02 0.04
(®)
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 250
NAV 0.07 () NAV
250 500 NAV 0.06
() NAV 500 NAV 0.05
10,000,000
2018 S&P 500
() NAV 250 NAV
0.11 () NAV 250 500
NAV 0.10 () NAV
500 NAV 0.09
100,000
©) NAV
0.05
2016 TOPIX 20,361,646 2018 30
27,758,067 8,264,100 2018 30 12,318,149
2016 225 30,866,252 2018 30
36,904,711 18,087,202 2018 30 18,641,622
2018 S&P 500 63,826
63,826 2018 11 27
2016 JPX 400 22,359,852 2018 30
17,342,597 10,622,730 2018 30 13,342,840
10.
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2016 TOPIX 316,638 2018 30 316,237
2018 30
2016 225 316,638 2018 30 316,237
2018 30
2018 S&P 500 7,744
2018 11 27
2016 JPX 400 316,638 2018 30 316,235
2018 30
11.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 100
NAV 0.07 () NAV 100
250 NAV 0.06 () NAV
250 500 NAV 0.05
() NAV 500 NAV 0.04
720,000
2018 S&P 500 ()
NAV 100 NAV 0.07 ()
NAV 100 250
NAV 0.06 () NAV 250 500
NAV 0.05 () NAV
500 NAV 0.04
6,000
2016 TOPIX 9,746,628 2018 30
12,844,082 9,263,928 2018 30 19,655,307
2016 225 14,661,030 2018 30
16,743,907 15,008,748 2018 30 23,397,947
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2018 S&P 500 42,608
42,608 2018 11 27
2016 JPX 400 10,577,314 2018 30
7,323,726 9,807,072 2018 30 17,667,047
12.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV 0.01
120,000
2018 S&P 500 NAV
0.01 1,000
2016 TOPIX 17,674,688 2018 30
19,670,706 20,645,683 2018 30 27,073,839
2016 225 3,645,449 2018 30
2,280,195 690,680 2018 30 5,531,227
2018 S&P 500 11,813
11,813 2018 11 27
2016 JPX 400 3,871,562 2018 30
1,927,088 915,089 2018 30 1,136,502
13.
JPX 400
225 500 TOPIX
2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV  0.02 100,000
2018 S&P 500 NAV
0.01 2016 TOPIX () NAV 100
NAV 0.00 () NAV 100
500 NAV 0.005 () NAV
500 1000 NAV 0.003 ()
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NAV 1000 3000 NAV 0.002
() NAV 3000 5000 NAV
0.001 () NAV 5000
NAV 0.0005 100,000

2018 S&P 500

2016 TOPIX 1,180,191 2018 30 225,247
2018 30
2016 225 4,150,441 2018 30
5,215,069 2018 30
2018 S&P 500 8,878
2018 11 27
2016 JPX 400 2,897,630 2018 30
2,768,921 2018 30
14.
11
2019 30
2016 2016 2018 S&P 500 2016
TOPIX JPX 400 * 225
2018 156,035 140,161
2018 11 470 18,191

2019 82,554 131,611 88
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2019 552 603
239,611 271,772 88 18,794
* 2018 11 27
2018 30
2016 2016 2016
TOPIX JPX 400 225

2017 199,710 - 11,930
2018 98,675 98,111 153,652
2018 487 - 12,588

298,872 98,111 178,170
15.

74

50
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16.
10
17.
2018 30
18.
2018 S&P 500 2018 11 27
19.
20.

2019 30 2019 12 19
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2016 225
2019 30
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%)
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%)
0.64% (2018 30 0.81%)
42,000 Dentsu Inc 157,920 0.64
157,920 0.64
0.08% (2018 30 0.11%)
4,200 IHI Corp 10,907 0.04
4,200 Kawasaki Heavy Industries Ltd 10,639 0.04
21,546 0.08
0.40% (2018 30 0.-48%)
42,000 Japan Tobacco Inc 99,939 0.40
99,939 0.40
0.06% (2018 30 0.06%)
4,200 ANA Holdings Inc 14,986 0.06
14,986 0.06
3.80% (2018 30 4.07%)
42,000 Hino Motors Ltd 38,094 0.15
84,000 Honda Motor Co Ltd 233,940 0.94
21,000 Isuzu Motors Ltd 25,767 0.10
8,400 Mazda Motor Corp 9,446 0.04
4,200 Mitsubishi Motors Corp 2,167 0.01
42,000 Nissan Motor Co Ltd 32,407 0.13
42,000 Subaru Corp 109,998 0.44
42,000 Suzuki Motor Corp 212,688 0.86
42,000 Toyota Motor Corp 280,896 1.13
945,403 3.80
2.39% (2018 30 2.48%)
42,000 Bridgestone Corp 178,164 0.72
42,000 Denso Corp 190,386 0.77
42,000 JTEKT Corp 54,852 0.22
42,000 NGK Insulators Ltd 65,982 0.27
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
2.39% (2018 30 2.48%) ( )
42,000 Sumitomo Electric Industries Ltd 59,409 0.24
21,000 Yokohama Rubber Co Ltd 41,580 0.17
590,373 2.39
0.69% (2018 30 0.81%)

4,200 Aozora Bank Ltd 10,861 0.04
42,000 Chiba Bank Ltd 22,092 0.09
42,000 Concordia Financial Group Ltd 16,842 0.07

8,400 Fukuoka Financial Group Inc 16,523 0.07
42,000 Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc 21,504 0.09
42,000 Mizuho Financial Group Inc 6,556 0.03

4,200 Resona Holdings Inc 1,884 0.01

4,200 Shinsei Bank Ltd 7,027 0.03
42,000 Shizuoka Bank Ltd 33,348 0.13

4,200 Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc 15,985 0.06

4,200 Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc 16,405 0.07

169,027 0.69

1.49% (2018 30 1.65%)
42,000 Asahi Group Holdings Ltd 203,490 0.83
42,000 Kirin Holdings Co Ltd 97,587 0.39

8,400 Sapporo Holdings Ltd 19,060 0.08
42,000 Takara Holdings Inc 47,334 0.19

367,471 1.49
3.01% (2018 30 2.74%)

8,400 AGC Inc 31,290 0.13
42,000 Daikin Industries Ltd 590,730 2.38

4,200 Nippon Sheet Glass Co Ltd 3,079 0.01

4,200 Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co Ltd 17,976 0.07

4,200 Taiheiyo Cement Corp 13,692 0.06
21,000 TOTO Ltd 89,355 0.36

746,122 3.01
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
5.16% (2018 30 5.52%)

42,000 Asahi Kasei Corp 48,237 0.19
8,400 Denka Co Ltd 26,838 0.11
4,200 DIC Corp 11,945 0.05

42,000 Kuraray Co Ltd 54,054 0.22

21,000 Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Corp 15,805 0.06
8,400 Mitsui Chemicals Inc 22,403 0.09

42,000 Nippon Kayaku Co Ltd 54,474 0.23

42,000 Nissan Chemical Corp 203,910 0.82

42,000 Nitto Denko Corp 223,314 0.90

42,000 Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Ltd 421,470 1.70
4,200 Showa Denko KK 13,314 0.05

42,000 Sumitomo Chemical Co Ltd 21,000 0.08
8,400 Teijin Ltd 15,431 0.06

42,000 Tokai Carbon Co Ltd 47,208 0.19
8,400 Tokuyama Corp 24,461 0.10

42,000 Toray Industries Inc 34,406 0.14

21,000 Tosoh Corp 31,815 0.13
4,200 Ube Industries Ltd 9,383 0.04

1,279,468 5.16
3.73% (2018 30 3.07%)

21,000 Dai Nippon Printing Co Ltd 48,216 0.19
126,000 Recruit Holdings Co Ltd 452,844 1.83
42,000 Secom Co Ltd 389,508 1.57
21,000 Toppan Printing Co Ltd 34,335 0.14
924,903 3.73

1.42% (2018 30 2.89%)
4,200 Fujitsu Ltd 31,550 0.13
4,200 NEC Corp 17,808 0.07
210,000 NTT Data Corp 301,350 1.22
350,708 1.42
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
2.77% (2018 30 2.67%)
42,000 Kao Corp 344,820 1.39
42,000 Shiseido Co Ltd 341,082 1.38
685,902 2.711
2.09% (2018 30 2.07%)
42,000 ITOCHU Corp 86,541 0.35
42,000 Marubeni Corp 29,946 0.12
42,000 Mitsubishi Corp 119,280 0.48
42,000 Mitsui & Co Ltd 73,668 0.30
4,200 Sojitz Corp 1,453 0.01
42,000 Sumitomo Corp 68,565 0.28
42,000 Toyota Tsusho Corp 137,130 0.55
516,583 2.09
0.52% (2018 30 0.62%)
42,000 Credit Saison Co Ltd 52,962 0.21
42,000 Daiwa Securities Group Inc 19,828 0.08
42,000 Matsui Securities Co Ltd 42,672 0.17
42,000 Nomura Holdings Inc 15,935 0.06
131,397 0.52
0.06% (2018 30 0.06%)
4,200 Chubu Electric Power Co Inc 6,348 0.03
4,200 Kansai Electric Power Co Inc 5,185 0.02
4,200 Tokyo Electric Power Co Holdings Inc 2,360 0.01
13,893 0.06
0.42% (2018 30 0.53%)

42,000 Casio Computer Co Ltd 56,196 0.23
42,000 Fujikura Ltd 17,010 0.07
4,200 Furukawa Electric Co Ltd 13,251 0.05
8,400 GS Yuasa Corp 17,455 0.07
103,912 0.42
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )

6.35% (2018 30 3.83%)
42,000 Alps Alpine Co Ltd 76,272 0.31
84,000 Kyocera Corp 590,940 2.38
42,000 Minebea Mitsumi Inc 76,650 0.31
12,600 Nippon Electric Glass Co Ltd 34,385 0.14
42,000 Omron Corp 236,040 0.95
8,400 SCREEN Holdings Co Ltd 37,758 0.15
42,000 Taiyo Yuden Co Ltd 84,210 0.34
42,000 TDK Corp 350,280 1.41
42,000 Yokogawa Electric Corp 88,704 0.36
1,575,239 6.35
1.35% (2018 30 1.63%)
42,000 Chiyoda Corp 12,138 0.05
42,000 COMSYS Holdings Corp 114,744 0.46
42,000 JGC Corp 62,076 0.25
21,000 Kajima Corp 31,038 0.13
42,000 Obayashi Corp 44,562 0.18
42,000 Shimizu Corp 37,590 0.15
8,400 Taisei Corp 32,886 0.13
335,034 1.35
0.08% (2018 30 0.06%)
4,200 Toho Co Ltd 19,236 0.08
19,236 0.08
0.01% (2018 30 0.02%)
8,400 Hitachi Zosen Corp 3,318 0.01
3,318 0.01
3.49% (2018 30 3.31%)
42,000 Aeon Co Ltd 77,742 0.31
42,000 Ajinomoto Co Inc 78,456 0.32
42,000 Kikkoman Corp 196,980 0.79

129/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
3.49% (2018 30 3.31%) ( )
4,200 Maruha Nichiro Corp 13,293 0.05
8,400 MEIJI Holdings Co Ltd 64,680 0.26
21,000 NH Foods Ltd 96,915 0.39
21,000 Nichirei Corp 53,697 0.22
42,000 Nippon Suisan Kaisha Ltd 28,056 0.11
42,000 Nisshin Seifun Group Inc 103,278 0.42
42,000 Seven & i Holdings Co Ltd 153,216 0.62
866,313 3.49
0.14% (2018 30 0.13%)
4,200 Nippon Paper Industries Co Ltd 8,014 0.03
42,000 0ji Holdings Corp 26,124 0.11
34,138 0.14
0.15% (2018 30 0.16%)
8,400 Osaka Gas Co Ltd 15,767 0.06
8,400 Tokyo Gas Co Ltd 21,315 0.09
37,082 0.15
0.13% (2018 30 0.13%)
8,400 Fuji Electric Co Ltd 31,206 0.13
31,206 0.13
2.99% (2018 30 2.61%)
168,000 Olympus Corp 200,928 0.81
168,000 Terumo Corp 539,280 2.18
740,208 2.99
0.87% (2018 30 0.93%)
42,000 Daiwa House Industry Co Ltd 131,922 0.53
8,400 Haseko Corp 9,156 0.04
42,000 Sekisui House Ltd 74,571 0.30
215,649 0.87
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
1.11% (2018 30 1.13%)
42,000 Panasonic Corp 37,699 0.15
42,000 Sony Corp 237,216 0.96
274,915 1.11
1.18% (2018 30 1.08%)

4,200 Dai-ichi Life Holdings Inc 6,825 0.03
42,000 Japan Post Holdings Co Ltd 51,240 0.21
12,600 MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc 43,092 0.17
10,500 Sompo Holdings Inc 43,690 0.18

8,400 Sony Financial Holdings Inc 21,739 0.09

8,400 T&D Holdings Inc 9,824 0.04
21,000 Tokio Marine Holdings Inc 113,379 0.46

289,789 1.18
1.18% (2018 30 1.12%)

8,400 CyberAgent Inc 32,802 0.13
42,000 Rakuten Inc 53,760 0.22
42,000 Trend Micro Inc 201,810 0.81
16,800 Yahoo Japan Corp 5,309 0.02

293,681 1.18
0.13% (2018 30 0.19%)

8,400 Japan Steel Works Ltd 15,112 0.06

4,200 JFE Holdings Inc 6,646 0.03

4,200 Kobe Steel Ltd 2,961 0.01

4,200 Nippon Steel Corp 7,766 0.03

32,485 0.13

1.28% (2018 30 1.40%)
21,000 Tokyo Dome Corp 21,399 0.09
42,000 Yamaha Corp 215,040 0.87
42,000 Yamaha Motor Co Ltd 80,430 0.32
316,869 1.28
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
4.93% (2018 30 4.91%)
42,000 Amada Holdings Co Ltd 50,946 0.21
8,400 Ebara Corp 24,562 0.10
42,000 FANUC Corp 837,060 3.38
42,000 Kubota Corp 75,306 0.30
8,400 OKUMA Corp 46,452 0.19
8,400 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Ltd 31,122 0.13
42,000 Yaskawa Electric Corp 153,720 0.62
1,219,168 4.93
1.36% (2018 30 1.40%)
42,000 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Ltd 117,684 0.47
8,400 Hitachi Ltd 33,172 0.13
42,000 Komatsu Ltd 109,200 0.44
42,000 Mitsubishi Electric Corp 59,598 0.24
4,200 Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd 19,702 0.08
339,356 1.36
0.01% (2018 30 0.01%)
4,200 SKY Perfect JSAT Holdings Inc 1,764 0.01
1,764 0.01
0.26% (2018 30 0.31%)
42,000 NSK Ltd 40,320 0.16
42,000 NTN Corp 13,440 0.05
4,200 Toho Zinc Co Ltd 10,475 0.05
64,235 0.26
0.56% (2018 30 0.69%)
8,400 Dowa Holdings Co Ltd 29,022 0.12
4,200 Mitsubishi Materials Corp 12,873 0.05
4,200 Mitsui Mining & Smelting Co Ltd 10,819 0.04
42,000 Nippon Light Metal Holdings Co Ltd 9,786 0.04
4,200 Pacific Metals Co Ltd 9,345 0.04
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
0.56% (2018 30 0.69%) ( )

21,000 Sumitomo Metal Mining Co Ltd 67,599 0.27
139,444 0.56
1.21% (2018 30 0.94%)
42,000 FUJIFILM Holdings Corp 229,446 0.93
42,000 Nikon Corp 64,008 0.26
4,200 Toyobo Co Ltd 5,401 0.02
298,855 1.21
1.74% (2018 30 1.76%)
63,000 Canon Inc 198,198 0.80
42,000 Konica Minolta Inc 44,058 0.18
42,000 Ricoh Co Ltd 45,192 0.18
84,000 Seiko Epson Corp 143,220 0.58
430,668 1.74
0.38% (2018 30 0.45%)
16,829 Idemitsu Kosan Co Ltd 54,526 0.22
16,800 Inpex Corp 16,318 0.07
42,000 JXTG Holdings Inc 22,445 0.09
93,289 0.38
0.36% (2018 30 0.30%)
42,000 Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Ltd 89,796 0.36
89,796 0.36
7.46% (2018 30 7.21%)

210,000 Astellas Pharma Inc 322,350 1.30
42,000 Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 295,680 1.19
42,000 Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd 236,670 0.96
42,000 Eisai Co Ltd 255,822 1.03
42,000 Kyowa Kirin Co Ltd 81,438 0.33
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
7.46% (2018 30 7.21%) ( )

42,000 Otsuka Holdings Co Ltd 147,672 0.60
42,000 Shionogi & Co Ltd 260,778 1.05
42,000 Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma Co Ltd 85,806 0.35
42,000 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 160,566 0.65
1,846,782 7.46

1.63% (2018 30 1.59%)
42,000 Mitsubishi Estate Co Ltd 84,210 0.34
42,000 Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd 109,725 0.44
42,000 Sumitomo Realty & Development Co Ltd 161,616 0.65
21,000 Tokyo Tatemono Co Ltd 25,137 0.10
42,000 Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Corp 24,990 0.10
405,678 1.63

13.60% (2018 30 11.01%)

42,000 Citizen Watch Co Ltd 23,226 0.09
168,000 FamilyMart UNY Holdings Co Ltd 432,096 1.74
42,000 Fast Retailing Co Ltd 2,735,460 11.05
42,000 Isetan Mitsukoshi Holdings Ltd 36,708 0.15
21,000 J Front Retailing Co Ltd 25,935 0.10
42,000 Marui Group Co Ltd 92,148 0.37
21,000 Takashimaya Co Ltd 24,801 0.10
3,370,374 13.60

3.59% (2018 30 3.69%)
84,000 Advantest Corp 249,060 1.01
4,200 SUMCO Corp 5,384 0.02
42,000 Tokyo Electron Ltd 635,040 2.56
889,484 3.59

0.02% (2018 30 0.02%)
4,200 Mitsui E&S Holdings Co Ltd 4,170 0.02
4,170 0.02
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98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
98.23% (2018 30 93.06%) ( )
0.97% (2018 30 0.97%)

12,600 DeNA Co Ltd 26,019 0.11
42,000 Konami Holdings Corp 212,100 0.86
238,119 0.97

8.41% (2018 30 6.92%)
252,000 KDDI Corp 691,362 2.79
8,400 Nippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp 42,143 0.17
42,000 Nisshinbo Holdings Inc 34,566 0.14
4,200 Ntt DoCoMo Inc 10,552 0.04
4,200 Oki Electric Industry Co Ltd 5,649 0.02
252,000 SoftBank Group Corp 1,301,580 5.25
2,085,852 8.41

0.01% (2018 30 0.04%)
4,200 Unitika Ltd 1,621 0.01
1,621 0.01

2.56% (2018 30 2.47%)
4,200 Central Japan Railway Co 90,636 0.37
4,200 East Japan Railway Co 42,336 0.17
4,200 Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha Ltd 5,523 0.02
8,400 Keio Corp 59,556 0.24
21,000 Keisei Electric Railway Co Ltd 82,425 0.33
21,000 Mitsubishi Logistics Corp 62,244 0.25
4,200 Mitsui OSK Lines Ltd 10,832 0.04
4,200 Nippon Express Co Ltd 24,066 0.10
4,200 Nippon Yusen KK 7,262 0.03
21,000 Odakyu Electric Railway Co Ltd 55,377 0.22
8,400 Tobu Railway Co Ltd 26,376 0.11
21,000 Tokyu Corp 40,131 0.16
4,200 West Japan Railway Co 36,607 0.15
42,000 Yamato Holdings Co Ltd 92,022 0.37
635,393 2.56
24,338,763 98.23

135/280



* 0.01% (2018 30

(0.04)%)

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18,000
2,400

21,119 Nikkei 225 (OSE) September 2019
21,123 Nikkei 225 Mini September 2019

136/280

2,457
317
2,774

24,341,537
280,564
166,336

(9,675)

24,778,762

0.01
0.00
0.01

98.24
1.13
0.67

(0.04)

100.00



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassiM Trust
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Asg at 20 Jume 2018
Sariea 2018 TOPK Fumd Sories 2018 Nikkesl 235 Series DFH BEP 300
Fund Fund®
30 June 2018 30 June 28 30 Jure 2049
Bagels Motes JF000 JPYRG0 usoonn
Finanzial assals al fair value
Ihreugh pref o loss 4 10,886,401 24,541,837 27,048
Ininrest recehable E - 31
Chddends recefvable BIT 38,537 80
Amiunts g from brokers 18,884 - =
Cash and oash equivalens 265,025 280,664 973
Cash at brokers 80,540 168,338 185
Ceher recehables 155 1418 =
Tatal dasabs 10,048,730 24,826 492 2B 40
Liakilites
Financizl intitizs at far vake
through profit or loss 4 [1,231) o =
Marageman fss payable L] [3,254) {18.08T) {64}
Wiilhhoiding [ paystie [2487) (SE11TY 23
Cuslodian Meas payabls 1z 264 (54} 2
Adminieealion fee payabie 1 [3,254) (15,008} 3
Legal ard profassional Tees payakle 12,3813 2490 e
Audi fasa paralia (TE8) {863} i
Amaunte dua 1o Brokamn 13,143 - -
Saf up tess payable 1178 11,2800 =
Totat nbliten S—F Y s s
“otal lin 181,94 AT,
Mat asants attributable o holdens of reclsemabie !
anita 10,896,740 24, T7B,TEZ 20706

TITNE SUGHIN WNORED 81 I MOARIRDET 200 E, [N N M 1 compainiean

Th Mirsanial stalesnsnts wan sppoaved and sutforised for issus by the Trustes and the Direcions af the fanager on 13 Decambar 2015,

Inerkust Cerperate Suriicns (Cayman] Liited ss Trosiee 2P Nrgn b . ——
_M_imu LA /{-g:p%
O =

Tha sccompanying Nois &M &N niegrel par of thees S5a [

11
PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION (continued)
AF at 20 me 2078
Baries 218 JPK —
Mikkad 400 Fund
30 June 019
Anpata Notes Bl ]
Financial assets at far values teough proft or loss 4 15,051,284
DOividernds recefvable 25400
Amounts dee from brokers L
‘Cash and mash squivalents 285,190
Cashi at brokers B2, 30
Dther recetables 1,571
Total assabs 15452,331
Liahilitins
Managamant fses. payable ] 40,823
“sWth bl breg Baee b b {3,800
Custndiar fees papatbis 12 s
administration fees payable 11 {8,807
Legal and professional fees paryable 13,228
Ayl dmes payable {TE)
Amounts due to brokers 15,208
Sat up foes payabia 2512
Gther payables F25n
Total Equity 15,406,976
Thhe financial sistemants were aggrined and sathodesd for issus by the Trusios and the Dirsctons of the Manager on 19 December 20159,
Interirust Comparabs Sandaces (Cayman) Limied 4 Trosies LP. Morgan Mansart b & Manag
MM Lﬂ'ﬂl"'_‘—'
Leon Rhule
Amanda Small
Authaorisad Signatory

T Streparn ] . &5 G PLAGrS et 5] Fri RRarc SIemrmarts.
12
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As at 30 June 2018

Zerles 2016 TOPIX

Serles 2016 Mikkel

Fund 225 Fund
30 June 2018 30 June 2018
assets Motas JPYID JPYOD
Financial assets at falr value throwgh profit or loss 4 18,052,716 3,005,757
Dividends recelvatie 23,661 7405
Amounts due from Drokers 24,331 2,400,743
Cash and cash equivalents 342 166 207,913
Cash at brofers 129,848 116,463
Recelvables for uniis sold - 784,823
Dther recelvables =i i ]
Tokal assete 18,573,630 6,538, 36T
Liablities
Financial llablifies at falr value through prafit or loss 4 9,463 [1,229)
Management fees payabie o {12,318) {16,642}
Withnoiding tax payabie 3,624 {1,134}
Custodian fees payabie 12 (27,074) (5,531}
sdministration fees payabie 11 {19,655) {23,309}
Legal and professional fess payable [2.,568) {2.304)
Al fees payable {569) (554}
Amaounts due o brokers (6,3%8) -
St up fees payable [1,173) {1.280)
Payable for unhs redesmed - (3,246 21E)
Ciner payabies (2,229) (7,650}
Total liablilties {B5,915) (3.308,040)
Mot azssts attributabie to holders of redesmabls units 18,487,715 3,229,927

The financial statements were approved and Futonsed for lssue by the Trustes and the Directors of the Manager on 21 December 2016
Intertnest Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited as Trustes

J.P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited a5 Manager

The sccomparying nobes. ane an inbegral part of these finandal sistemenis.

13
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
As af 30 June 2018

Serles 216 JPX —
Mikkel 400 Fund
30 Juna 2018
Asssts Motas AP0
Financial as6ets at falr value throwgh profit ar loss 4 16,752,860
Dividends recelvatle 24,784
Amaounts due from brokers 20,822
C:ash and cash equivalents 198,538
Cazh at broiers 108,958
odher recelvables 845
Total asseis 17,107,127
Liabintias
Financial llablifies at falr value throwgh prafit or 1oss 4 (5.580)
Management fiees payabie o (13,343}
Withnoiding tax payabie (3.796)
Cusiodlan fees payabie 12 (1.137)
sdministration fees payabie 11 (17,867}
Legal and professional Tees payable (2,430}
Bl fees payable (1B}
Zat up fees payable (2.558)
Céner payables (7,155
Total [labiities [a5.324)
Total Equity 17,051,803

The Tinanclal statements were approved and authorsed for Esue by the Trustee and the Direciors of the Manager on 21 December 2016

Intertrest Corporate Senvices (Cayman) Lmited 3s Trustes

.|.P. Margan Mansart Management Limited 35 Manager

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese finandal siatements.

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year from 1 July 2018 fo 30 June 2015

14

Sarles 2016 Sarles 2016 Series 2018 &P
TOPIX Fund Mikkal 225 Fund 500 Fumnd*
30 Jung 2013 30 June 2013 Perlod from 27
Hiovembar 2018 fo
30 June 2013
Incoma HNotes JPYT00D JPT000 UsD'o0D
Med (loss)gain on Ninancial assets and llablltes at falr
value throwgh prafit or loss T (1,490,367 {2,437, 606) 3,468
Dividend Income 325,250 Erali 517
Total net [loss)income [1.165,137) 2,050,136} 3,585
Expenass
Management fees -1 {20,362) [30,B5E) (64)
Cusindlan fees 12 {17,675} {3,645} 12}
Administration fees 11 {0,747} {14,651} {43)
Legal and professional fess {2526} 12,528) (18]
St up Tees (274} {402} (%)
At fzes 721} {721} i)
License feas 13 {1,180) {4,150) el
Tnssies fees 10 37} 317} ()
Ofher expenses (1.787} {2,715) {14}
Total operating expenses [54.551) [61,005) [186)
Financa coet
Distribution o Unliholders 14 [233,611) (18,734} (B8]
{LossProfit befors tax [1.453.339) |2.128.335) 3,711
Withnoiding tax [45,804) [58,362) [151)
Met (loaslgain attributabie fo holders of
redeemable participating unita (1.509,143) (2,188,357} 3,560

"This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Movernber 208, thersfore there am no compamiives.

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese financlsl siatements.

15

139/280



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [continued)
For the financial year from 1 July 2018 fo 30 June 2019

There ars no gains or iesses i ihe Sinanclal year other than thase deait with in the Stat=ment of Comprehensive Income and accondingly no stat=ment of
total recognised gains amd losses has been presented.

All resulis are from conbnuing operations.

The sccomparying nobes. are an inbegral part of These= financial siaf=menis.
16
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [continued)
For the financial year from 1 July 2018 fo 30 June 2013
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Income MNotee

Med (loss) an financial assets and llabiities at far value
through prafit or loss T
Dividend Income

Total nat (iees)

Expensss

Management faes o
Cusiodlan fees 12
Administration fees 11
Legal and profassional Tees

St up fees

AUDE Tees

License fees 13
Trstes fees 10
Ofher eXpenses

Tokal operating expenzes

|Loes) befors tax
Withhoiding tax
Met [koas) attributabie to holders of equity units

Saries 2016 JPX —
Hikkal 400 Fund
30 Juns 2013
JPY' 000

{1,657 450}
388,624

[1.268,826)

{22,360)
[3,672)
{10,577)
12,528)
(14)
(T2
{2.504)
(317}
{1,407)

B
{1.313,520)
{59,535)

[1,373,055)

Thers ars no gains or losses In the financial y=ar oiher than thoss deait with In the ESstement of Comprehensive Income and accondingly no statement of

total recognisesd gains and losses has been presented.

All results are from conbinuing operstions.

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese financial siviements.
17

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [continued)
For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018

Series 2016 TOPIX Soriea 2016 Mikksl
Fund Fund
30 Juna 2018 30 June 2018
Income Hoflea JPY 000 JPY D00
Med galn on financlal assets and Babilities at falr value
through prafit or loss 7 1,181,657 6,863,142
Dividend Income 456,548 451,443
Total net Income 1,640,815 7,313,585
Expensss
Management fees a (27,758) {36.305)
Custodlan fees 12 {19,671) [2.250)
Administration fees 11 [12,844) {16,744)
Legal and professional fees [2,538) [2.538)
Sat up Tees 1,272) (1.272)
AR Tees 745) [745)
Licnse fees 13 [225) [5.215)
Trestes fees 10 [318) [315)
CANEr EXpEnses 2,53 (4.064)
Total operating expenses [ET.893) (70,073)
Financa coet
Distribution o Unliholders 14 {208,572 (178,170
Profit befiore tax 1,274,044 7,071,336
Withhokding tax [70,279) {69, 130)
Het gain attributable to holders of redesmable units 1,203,765 7,002,157
Thers are no gains or losses in the Anancial year oiher than fhose dealt with in the 28 of Ive Income and ace no stabement of

total recognised gaings amd losses has been presenied.
All results are from continuing operations.

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese financlsl siatements.
1&
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [continued)
For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018

Series 2016 JPX -
Milkksl 400 Fund
30 June 2018
Income Hofes JPYTO0D
Med galn on financlal assste and Eabiltties at falr value
through praft or loss 7 123,284
Dividend Income 3x2.299
Tokal net Income 451,583
Expensss
Management fees a {17.343)
Cusindlan fees 12 (1.927)
sdministration fees 11 (7.324)
Legal and professional fees {2695}
Sat up Tees (2096}
AUdE Tees [T45h
License fees 13 (2760
Trustes fees 10 [316}
CHNEr EXpENSEs (2.330)
Total operafing expenzas [37.554)
Profit bafiore tax 414,023
Withhalding tax {48,360}
Met gain attribufable to holders of equity unite 364 BES

There ars no galns ar loss=s in ihe nanclal y=ar other than those deait with In the Stat=ment of Comprehensive Income and accardingly no statement of
total rcognisad gaine and iosses has besn pressnted.

All results are from conbinuing operations.

The sccomparying nobes. ane an inbegral part of thes= financial siab=menis.
1a

142/280



PassIM Trust

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOLDERS

For the financial year from 1 July 2018 fo 30 June 2013

Series 2016 TOPIX Saries 2016 Nikkel Series 2016 S&P
Fund 225 Fund 500 Fund*
Pariod from 27
Movember 2018 to
30 Junae 3013 30 Juns 2015 30 Juns 20109
Hotes JPY000 JPY' 0D USD000
Total assets attributable to redesming
participating unitholders at beginning of the
financial year 18,487,715 3,225,927 -
Procesds from the [s5ue of redeemable
participating unks 5013607 36,636,162 24,646
Payment on the redemption of redesmalie
participating unks 11,095,438} {13,098,970) -
Med (decreaselincrease resutting from unit
transactions {6,081.632) 23,737,192 24 B46
Met (decreaselincrease for the Mnancial year In
net assets atfributable o unitholders fram
operations (1,500,143} {2,163,357) 3,550
Total assets attributable to redesming
participating unitholders at end of the financlal
yaaEr 10,856, 740 24, TTE, T2 28,76
*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Movember 2015, ihenefore hene am no companives.
The accompanying notes are an Inbegral part of Inese Tnandal sixtements.
20
PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN EQGUITY
For the financial year fram 1 July 2018 fo 30 June 2019
Soriea 2016 JPX —
Milkkal 400 Fund
30 June 2013
HNotes JPYD0D
Total equity at beginning of the financlal year 17,051,803
Proceets from the Issue of redeemabis
participating unis -
Payment on the ragemplion of redeamable
participating unks -
Met Increasa resulting from unit transactions -
Distribution to Unliholders 14 [271,772)
Med (@ecrease) for e financial year in net asseis
atirioutabie to unitholders fram aperations {1.373.055)
Total equity at end of the Nnancial year 15,406,576

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese financlsl siatements.
21
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOLDERS

[continued)

For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018

Total assets attributable to redesming
participating unitholders at beginning of the
fnanctal year

Procesds Trom the Issue of redeemable
participating urks

Payment on the redemption of redeamatie
participating unis
Me (decrease] resuling from unif transactions.

Med Incregse for the inanclal year In net assets
attributable to unithoiders fraom operations

Tofal aszete atfributabie to redesming

participating unitholders at end of the financlal

yaar

Series 2016 TOPIX
Fund

30 June 2018

JPY 00D

27 877,605

4,645,305

{15,423,960)

Series 2016 Nikkel
225 Fund

30 June 2018
JPYT000

23,336.643

50,976,935

(7E.085,848)

(10,593,655)

1,203,765

{27.108,913)

7,002,157

18,487,715

3,223,327

The sccomparying nobes. ane an inbegral part of these finandal sistemenis.

22
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018
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Total equity at beginning of the financial year

Proceads from the Issue of redeemabie
participating unks

Fayment on the ragemption of redeemabie
participating units
Med Increasa resulting from unit ransactions

Distribution to Uniholders 14

Mel Increase for the inanclal year In net assets
atiributable to unithoiders fram aperations

Tofal equity af end of the Nnancial year

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese finandal siatements.

PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year from 1 July 2018 fo 30 June 2019

Cach Sowe from aparating aofhvibes
Cpzrafing (kossi'gain for the Snanclal year

Adjusimants Tor:
Distribution pald o Unithoiders

Dhidemd Income
‘W hhna kding tax on dividend Income
Oparating lossigain bafors working capial chamges

Chamges In financal asseis af falr value feough peoft or loss
Chargs I firancial labiibes &t falr valus through profs or loss
Change I recelvables

Charge In payables

Chargs I cash at broker

Nei oash provided by ussd In} operations

Income tax pald
Dhidemds recehed

Hei oach provided by ussd In) opsratimg aciivities

Cach Bows [ussd Injiprovided by finanoing scivEiss
Procesds from lssue of redesmab e participaing wnits
Payments from nedemgotion of nedesmable pamicioating unks
Cisdribution pald fo Unitholders

Hei oach [cutfcwiinfiow from Ninancing sothlise

Hai ohangs In caeh and cach squivalsnic

Cash and cash equivalsnts a1ihe beginning of inancial year
Cash and cash sguivalants at the end of the Bnanclal year

Serles 216 JPX —

Mikkel 400 Fund

30 June 2018

JPYT000

1,201,156

20,669,953

(14,105,909

15,564,069

{9E.111)

364,669

17,051,803

23

Sarlae 2016 TOPDC Saries H1E Nikikel Saries 2018 S&P

Fund 225 Fumnd 500 Fund*

Perlod from 27

Hovember 2018 to

30 June 2013 30 Juna 2013 3 June 2013

JPY'D00 JPY 0D USD"000

(1,509,143} [2.188,357] 3,560

235,511 18,734 BE

(325,250) (387,610 =17}

45,804 SEFEL 151

01,644,878} [2,487,811) 3282

T4BE T 121,335,781) (27,145}

(8,232} (1,225) -

4648 3,195,550 ral]

(25,653} [2.280,084) 202

22,408 (45,848) (125

6,851,470 (23,844, 7TT) 23,8711

(£8,804) (58,362) sy

332,540 ELLRTEN 437
8,234 308 123,846, TE3) _ (23,E88)

5,043,607 36,836,162 24,646

(11,095,435 13,098,570 -

(235,841] (18,754] =8}

i8,321,443) 23,718, 388 24,568

(87,137 72,846 w73

ELR L 207,515 -

266,020 280,584 i

"This: Sub-Fund lsunched an 27 Movember 2018, thersfore fhene ane no companbves.

“The accompanying nobes ane an inbegral parf of These inanclal sixfements.

24
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Cach flows from operaking acbviies
‘Operating (oss) for the inancial year

Adjuctments for:

Chvldend Incame

"Withkoiding tax on dividend Inoomes

Operating {loss) befors working captal changes:

Zhange In Ainancial assets at falr vale through prodl or loss
Change In financial llsbiRies af fair value Shrough profitor loss
Change In receivables

Zhange In payables

Zhang= In cash at broker

Mot esch provided by cparations

Income tax pakd
Dhidends rescebeed
Mot essh provided by cparading aodheibes

Cach NMiows (soed In) by nancing ackvitiss
Froczeds from issus of unils fo equity holkders
Faymenis from redempbion of uniés from e=quity hokders
Distribadion pald fo Unitholders

Mot essh ouiflow Trom finanoing aokhyiiss

Mot changs In oash and cash eguivalants
Cash and cash equivalients. a e beginning of financial year
Cach and oach squivalenis ai the snd of She finanolal year

Serlas 2018 JPX —
Hikkel 400 Fund
30 June 2013
JPY000

(1,373,055}

Thie sccompanying nobes sne an inkegral part of inese financlsl sistements.

25

146/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS [continued)
For the financial year from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

Zeries 2016 TOPIX Soeries 2016 Nikkel

Fund 225 Fund
30 Juna 2018 30 June 2018
JPY' 000 JPYO0D
Cach flows from oparaking actvities
Tparating gain for the financial year 1,203,765 7,002,187
Aductments for:
Distribstion pald fo Unithalders 298572 178170
Didend Income [458,948) (451,443}
Withkoiding tax on dividend Income 0,373 59,13%
Opsrating galn bafors working capial ohangsc 1,113, 888 8, T&E 083
Change In financlal assels at falr value through prof or loss 9,567,643 0177813
Change In inancial labiiies at fa vaise Srough prodt o ioss 5452 1,183
Change In rec=hmabies BSEEE (3,108 208}
Change In payables (40,985] 3130545
iGhange In cash at broker (28,044] {39,530}
Mot eash provided by cpamations 10,707,718 2THE07TE
Bncome Ay pakd 70,2791 {659,135}
Chvidends received 4ABE 53T 474 265
Mot esch provided by ciparading aodheiies 11,104,378 27 424 201
Cach fiows [wesd In) financing sctiviklsc
Froceeds from issus of redeematbie pasticipating units 4,845 305 S0.578,335
Fayments from redemption of redesmaiie paricipating wnits [15,438,960) (78,085, 848}
Distribasiion pald fo Unitholders [(Z98.0573) ¢1TE ATa)
Mot osch ouifiow from finamoing aofivibes (18,882,627 27,287, 0BT
Mot change In cash and cash eguivalants 291,848 157,118
Cash and cash equivaienss af the beginning of financial year 130,317 70,801
Cach and oash squivalenis ai the snd of Sha Ninanolal year B4 198 0T B8
The accompanying notes ane an Inbegral part of fhese financlal siatements.
-]
PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018
Soerles 2016 JPX —
Mikked 400 Fund
30 June 2018
JPYTO00
Cach flows from operaking acbvities
Operating gain for the inancial year 364,669
Adjuctments for:
Chvldend Incame {322,255}
"Withkoiding tax on dividend Inoome 43,360
Opsrating galn bafors working capiial changss #1,730
Change In financial assets ot falr value through prof® or loss (15,636,853}
hange In financial lsbiities af {air vaise through oroft o loss 5,580
hang= In receivables 20,258,973
Chang= In payables (20,607,563}
Chang= In cash at broker 154.573}
Mot sxsh ueed In cperations 16,643, 122)
Income {ax pakd 45,3800
Dhidends received 99,920
Mot osch ueed In aparaiing aothibes 16,882,653
Cach Niows provided by fMinanoing astivitiss
Froceeds Tom issus of unils o =quity holders 15,659,338
Fayments from redemption of unis from equity hokders (14,105,203}
Distribastion pald fo Unithalders 158,111}
Mot esch Inflow Trom finamoing aotiviies 16486878
Mot shangs In oach and oach sguivalsate {208, E=4)
Cash and cash equivaients. at fe beginning of financial year 405427
Cach and oach sguivalenis af the snd of tha finanolal year 18E,838
The accompanying nobes ans an integral part of fhese inandal siatements.
n
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General Information

PassIM Trust (the “Trust™, is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund under the laws of
the Cayman Islands pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 2 December 2014, as amended and
restated pursuant to an Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated 26 April 2016 (the
“Trust Deed").

For the purposes of AIFMD, the Trust will constitute a MNon-European Economic Area
("MON-EEA") AIF with a European Economic Area ("EEA”) AIFM. The distribution of this trust
is restricted to Japanese investors only.

The Trust has been established as an umbrella fund and accordingly the assets of the Trust
are separated info different Sub-Funds (together, the “Sub-Funds™). As at 30 June 2019, the
Trust holds 17 Sub-Funds, Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225
Fund, Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, BRL 2x Bull Fund, BRL 2x Bear
Fund, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India
2% Bull Fund, India 2% Bear Fund, Resources Twin Alpha BRL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha
TRY Fund, Resources Twin Alpha USD Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612

For the Sub-Funds Series 2016 TOPX Fund, Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund, Series

2016 Mikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&F 500 Fund for which this Annual Report and

Audited Financial Statements have been prepared, the fund administrator is State Sireet

Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and fund custodian is State Street Custodial Services (Ireland)
Limited. For the remaining 13 Sub-Funds, the fund administrators are BMP Paribas Securities

Services and BNP Paribas Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited and fund custodian

is BNP Paribas Securities Services. A separate Annual Report and Audited Financial

Statements have been prepared for these 13 Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund commenced its operations from 20 September 2016, Series 2016
JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund commenced its operations from 14 October 2016, Series 2016 Mikkei
225 Fund commenced its operations from 24 October 2016 and Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
commenced its operations from 27 November 2018.

The Sub-Funds invest in Index Secunties (as defined in the Supplements of the Sub-Funds)
having significantly the same weightings as those of the JPX-Mikkei Index 400, Mikkei 225
Index, S&F 500 Index and TOPIX Index and Financial Derivative Instruments (“FDI7),
including, but not limited to, futures for tracking the performance of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400,
Mikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index and for the purpose of efficient porticlio
management, including equitisation of cash exposures.

28
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1. General Information (continued)

The Sub-Funds operate principally as index tracking funds and as such, the adverse
performance of an Index Security will not ordinarily result in the elimination of that Index
Security from the Sub-Funds' portfolios. The Sub-Funds may not be invested in all the Index
Securities of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPLX Index at
all times due to various factors such as, but not imited to, the passive investment strategy of
the Sub-Funds and changes to the composition of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225
Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index. For example, when an Index Security ceases to be
a constituent of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Mikkei 225 Index, S&F 500 Index and TOPLX Index,
Mikko Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Investment Manager™) may rebalance the Sub-Funds
portfolio by selling the outgoing Index Securty and using the proceeds fo invest in
a replacement Index Security, which will reflect the replacement constituent of the JPX-Nikkei
Index 400, Mikkei 225 Index, S&F 500 Index and TOPIX Index. However, the Sub-Funds
portfolio may at any fime contain securities which are not a constituent of the JPX-Nikkei
Index 400, Mikkei 225 Index, S&F 500 Index and TOPIX Index, but will be within the
permitted investment universe of the Sub-Funds.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented,
unless otherwise stated.

All references to net asset value "NAVT) throughout these financial statements refer to net
assets attributable to registered holders of Units (“Unitholders™) unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Sub-Funds have heen prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liahilities, income and expenses.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
financial year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The hase curmmency of the Sub-Funds (excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) as well as the
operational curmency of the redeemable participating units (the *Units™) is Japanese Yen
(“JPY"). The base currency of Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund is United States Dollar (“USD").
The financial statements of the Sub-Funds (excluding Series 2018 S&F 500 Fund) are
presented in JPY. The financial statements of Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund are presented in
usD.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2018

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” was issued in July 2014 and became effective for the periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in |1AS
39 for the classification and measurement of the financial liahilities. However, it eliminates the
previous |1AS 39 categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans and receivables and
available for sale. The Trust has availed of an exemption not to restate comparative amounts.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9,
but rather those of 1AS 39 No adjustments have been included in the financial statements at
30 June 2018 to reflect the difference in camying amounts.

IFRS 5 also contains new requirements on the application of hedge accounting. The new
hedge accounting looks to the align hedge accounting with entities’ risk management
activities by increasing the eligibility of both hedged items and hedging instruments and
introducing a more principles based approach to assessing hedge effectiveness.

On adoption of IFRS 9 the Sub Funds' investment porifolio will continue to be classified as
fair value through profit or loss. Other financial assets which are held for collection will
continue to be measured at amortised cost with no material impact expected from application
of the new impairment model. As a result, the adoption of IFRS 9 is not expected to have a
material impact on the Sub Funds’ financial statements.

IFRS 156 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” was issued in May 2014 and is effective
for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The new standard did not have
any impact on the Sub-Funds financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial
statements.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards and amendments to standards that are relevant to the Sub-Funds but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Sub-Funds

IFRS 16 “Leases” was issued in January 2016 and will become effective for financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The new standard is not expected to have any impact
on the Sub-Funds’ financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial statements.

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” was issued in June 2017 and hecame
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It clarifies the accounting for
uncertainties in income taxes which is applied to the determination of taxable profits (tax loss),
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments in accordance with |1AS 12, It clarifies that the Sub-Funds' should
consider whether tax treatments should be considered independently or collectively, whether
the relevant tax authority will or will not accept each tax treatment and, the requirement to
reassess its judgements and estimates if facts and circumstances change. The application of
IFRIC 23 is not expected to have a significant effect on the Sub-Funds' financial position,
performance or disclosures in its financial statements.

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(i) Classification
The Sub-Funds classify their investments in equity securiies and FDI as financial
assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9
"Financial Instruments” ("IFRS 9").
ii) Valvation of Investments
J.P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited (the “Manager”) has appointed State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited ({the “Administrator™) for the purposes of calculating the
MNAY of the Sub-funds’ and valuing each asset in accordance with the pricing hierarchy
and procedures outlined in the Secunties Valuation Price Source Agresment.
The Investment Manager must assist the Administrator and the Manager in pricing the

assets of the Sub-funds’ where applicable, including the provision of any supporting
pricing information.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(i) Valuation of Investments (continued)

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represent the difference between disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost and
take into account all brokers' charges and commissions. Realised and unrealised gains
or losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{iii) Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date - the date on which
the Sub-Funds commit fo purchase or sell the investments. Investments are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or the Sub-Funds have transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(iv) Measurement

Investments are initialty recognised at fair value, and fransaction costs for financial
assets camied at fair value through profit or loss are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments are measured at fair value. The fair value
of financial assets and liahilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market prices
used for financial assets held by the Sub-Funds are the market closing prices at
reporting date.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the "financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss™ category are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income within “net gains of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™ in the
financial year in which they arise.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial Derivative Instruments

FDI are recognised at fair value on the date on which a FDI contract is entered into and
subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. All FDI are camied as assets when their fair
value is positive and as liahilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in fair values of
FDI are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The price is based on
counterparty tradeable market price. The fair value of future contracts is based upon daily
quoted settlement prices. Changes in the value of the confract are recognized as unrealized
gain or losses in the income statement.

(d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial asset and liabilities fraded in active markets (such as publicly
traded FDI and trading securities) is based on quoted market prices at the date of the
Statement of Financial Position.'"When the Sub-Funds hold FDI with offsetting market risks, it
uses mid-market prices as a basis for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions
and applies this bid or asking price to the net open position, as appropriate. The fair value of
financial assets and liahilities that are not fraded in an active market is determined using bid
price of broker quotes. In particular, the fair value of debt securities is determined by
reference fo the broker quotes as obtained from independent pricing sources including
Financial Times Evaluated and Bloomberg.

(e) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and hiakilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(f) Amounts due from/to broker
Amounts dus fromfo broker represent receivables for securities sold and payables for

securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yvet settled or delivered at the
financial year end respectively.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{g) Income and expenses

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest
method. It includes interest income from cash and cash equivalents and on debt securities at
fair value through profit or loss.

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis.
(h} Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Sub-Funds' financial statements are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional curmrency”).

This is JPY for the Sub-Funds (excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) which reflects the
primary capital raising market. The financial statements are presented in the JPY which
is also the Sub-Funds' (excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) presentation currency.
The functional presentation cumency of Series 2018 S&FP 500 Fund is USD.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign cumrency transactions are translated into the functional cumency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities are tfranslated into the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at
the financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the franslation at period-end exchange rates of all assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign curmrencies are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

The Sub-Funds do not isolate that portion of gains or losses on trading securities and
FDI which is due to changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to changes
in the market price of secunties. Such fluctuations are included in the net gains or losses
on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with onginal maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafis, if any, are shown as liahilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(1) <Cash at Broker

Cash at broker includes margin deposits for futures contracts which relates to collateral held
with the relevant broker.

(k) Redeemable units

Unitholders may request the Sub-Funds to redeem all or any of their units on any redemption
date at the net asset value per unit on such redemption date, in accordance with the
redemption procedures. The minimum redemption amount that applies to the Sub-Funds are
contained in the Prospectus or, as the case may be, the relevant Supplement. The Manager
may, in its absolute discretion, waive the minimum redemption amount for each class in
general, or in respect of a specific redemption request in whole or in part.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&F 500 Fund
have two classes of units in issue as at 30 June 2019. Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
has one class units in issue as at 30 June 2019, Units are classified as equity when there is
only one class of units outstanding for a Sub-Fund as at the Statement of Financial Position
date and these units meet all the other conditions of equity classification under 1AS 32
“Financial Instruments Presentation”, including the condition that these units were the most
subordinated units in issue in that Sub-Fund.

(I) Taxation

The Sub-Funds curmrently incur withtholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment
income and capital gains. Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Withholding taxes are shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Refer to Note 15 for details of taxation.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Preliminary expenses

The preliminary expenses of the Trust and each Sub-Fund are home by the respective Sub-
Funds. The preliminary expenses incurmmed in the establishment of the Trust and the Sub-
Funds are recognised as expenses of the Sub-Funds in the financial year in which they anse.

(n) Distributions

The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the distributions
payable to the Unitholders of the Sub-Funds. Al distributions will be paid net of any taxes
required to be withheld.

3. Financial risk management

The Sub-Funds activities expose them to a variety of risks, including but not limited to market
price risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk ansing from the financial
instruments held. The financial instruments are held in accordance with the published
investment policies of the Sub-Funds and managed accordingly to achieve the investment
objectives.

The risks and respective risk management policies employed to manage these risks are
disclosed below:
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
J. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It
represants the potential loss the Sub-Funds might suffer through holding market positions in
the face of price movements. Market risk is managed by the Manager. In the case of these
Sub-Funds, market risk within the FDI will be significant, but is entirely in line with investor
retums. Realised and unrealised gains are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the financial year in which they arise.

As at reporting date the overall market exposure is as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2019

JPY?000
Equities 10,566,401
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10,566,401
Futures (1.231)
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 1,231)
loss

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net
assets aftributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an
increase/decrease of JPY105,651,700.

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019

JPY'000
Equities 24 338,763
Futures 2,774

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24,341,537
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market price risk (continued)
If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net

assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulied in an
increase/decrease of JPY243,.415 370,

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund* 30 June 2019

USD000
Equities 27134
Futures 14
Forwards 1
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 27,149
Forwards™ -

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss -

"This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Novemnber 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.
" Forwartds which are less than $500 are rounded to zero.

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an
increasel/decrease of USD271,490.

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2019

JPY?000
Equities 15,051,097
Futuras 187

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15,051,284
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market price risk (continued)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an
increase/decrease of JPY150 512 840.

As at 30 June 2013 the overall market exposure is as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2018
JPY’000

Held for trading

Equities 18,062,718

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18,052,718

Held for trading -

Futures (9,463)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (9,463)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an
increase/decrease of JPY180,432 550.

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2018
JPYT000

Heid for frading

Equities 3,006,757

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,005,757

Held for trading S

Futures (1,229)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (1,229)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market price risk (continued)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulied in an

increase/decrease of JPY30,045,280.

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Held for trading
Equities

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Held for frading
Futures

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

30 June 2018
JPY'000

16,752,880
16,752,880

(5,580)
(3,580)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets aftributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an

increase/decrease of JPY167 473,000.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the fair values of financial instruments. Changes to prevailing interest rates or changes
in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the
securities held. In general, if interest rates rise, the value of fixed income securities will decline.
A decline in interest rates will in general have the opposite effect. Other assets and liakilities
bear no interest rate risk. The Sub-Funds invest primarily in equity securnities, therefore is not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk and no sensitivity analysis has been presented.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Sub-Funds are not exposed to curmency risk anising from balances
and fransactions in foreign cumencies as the majority of their assets and liabiliies are
denominated in JPY and USD, the Sub-Funds' functional and presentation cummency.
Accordingly, the Management considers that it is not necessary to present a sensitivity analysis
of currency risk.

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or a counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment (including payment of amounts in full when due) that it has entered into with the
Sub-Funds.

The Sub-Funds will be exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear
the risk of settement default. Cash and trading securities are held with the Custodian
throughout the year. All trading securities held by the Sub-Funds are companies listed on
recognised stock exchanges in Japan and the United States. Mone of them are in the nature of
debt. The settement of equities with the counterparty is on an against delivery basis and is
regulated by rules of respective stock exchanges. In general, there is no credit risk involved for
such kind of cash settlement.

For the purpose of cash management, the Sub-Fund has bank accounts with the Custodian and
Broker. Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited as Trustee has appointed State Street
Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited as its Custodian.

All the assets/(liabilities) of the Sub-Funds were held with the Custodian except cash held at the
Broker, Mizuho Securities Singapore, for futures trading.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

J. Financial risk management {continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

The tables below summarises the amount of the Sub-Funds’ assets held with the Custodian and
Broker with external rating and maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June 2019 and as at
30 June 2018:

Series 2016  Series 2016 Series 2018 Series 2016 JPX

30 June 2019 sap TOPIX  Nikkei225 S&P 500 Fund®  — Nikkei 400
Global Fund Fund usD'o00n Fund
o JPY000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Ratings
Cusiodi 15,337,423
Assets at Custodian AA- 10,820,198 24,622,102 27147 .
Assets at Broker A 00 540 166,336 a5 62,301

"This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Novemnber 2018, therefore there are no comparatives

S&P Series 2016 Series 2016 Series 2016 JPX

30 June 2018 Global TOPIX Fund Mikkei 225 — Mikkei 400
Ratings JPY000 Fund Fund

JPY000 JPY000

Assets at Custodian Ab- 18,385,421 3,212 446 16,946,138
Assets at Broker A 120,948 116,488 108,958

(e} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liahilities.

The Sub-Funds are exposed to daily cash redemptions of paricipating units. Sub-Funds
therefore invest the majority of theirs assets in investments that are traded in an active market

and can be readily disposed. The Sub-Funds’ majority assets are listed securities which are
considered readily realisable as they are listed on well established stock exchanges.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)

() Liquidity risk (continued)

The tables on the following page analyse the Sub Funds’ financial iabilities which will be settled
on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement
of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. All payables are due for setilement within one

month.
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
As at 30 June 2019 Less than 3 months
JPYT000
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,23
Withholding tax payable 2487
Administration fee payable 9,264
Audit fee payable 788
Management fee payable 8,264
Custodian fees payable 20,646
Legal and professional fees payable 2,381
Set up fees payable 1,179
Amounts due to brokers 3148
Other payables 2,602
Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders 10,396,740
Total liabilities 10,948,730
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

J. Financial risk management {continued)

() Liquidity risk (continued)
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2019 Less than 3 months

JPY000
Withholding tax payable 5611
Administration fee payable 15,009
Audit fee payable 653
Management fee payable 18,087
Custodian fees payable 691
Legal and professional fees payable 3,180
Set up fees payable 1,280
Other payables 3,209
Met asset value attibutable to redeeming participating unitholders 24778762
Total liabilities 24,826,492
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
J. Financial risk management {continued)

(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund*

As at 30 June 2019 Less than 3 months

usD'o00
Withholding tax payable 23
Administration fee payable 43
Audit fee payable 9
Management fee payable 64
Custodian fees payable 12
Leqgal and professional fees payable 18
Other payables 33
Met asset value attibutable to redeeming participating unitholders 28,206
Total liabilities 28,408

"This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Mowvemnber 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

J. Financial risk management {continued)

(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

As at 30 June 2019

Withholding tax payable
Administration fee payable

Audit fee payable

Management fee payable
Custodian fees payable

Leqgal and professional fees payable
Set up fees payable

Amounts due to brokers

Other payables

Total liabilities

Less than 3 months
JPY'000

3,890
9,807
7186
10,623
915
3,225
2,612
6,309
7,257
45,355
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

J. Financial risk management {continued)

(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
As at 30 June 2018 Less than 3 months
JPY000
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 9,463
Withholding tax payable 3624
Administration fee payable 19,655
Audit fee payable 689
Management fee payable 12,318
Custodian fees payahle 27,074
Legal and professional fees payable 2 586
Set up fees payable 1,179
Amounts due to brokers 6,308
Other payables 2,829
Met asset value attributable to redeeming parficipating unitholders 18,487,715
Total liabilities 18,573,630
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
() Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2018 Less than 3 months

JPY 000
Financial liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss 1,229
Withholding tax payable 1,134
Administration fee payable 23,398
Audit fee payable 554
Management fee payable 18,642
Custodian fees payable 5,541
Legal and professional fees payable 33494
Set up fees payable 1,280
Payable for units redeemed 3,246 218
Other payables 7,660
Met asset value atiributable to redeeming participating unitholders 3,229 927
Total liabilities 6,538,967
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

J. Financial risk management {continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

As at 30 June 2018

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fee payable

Audit fee payable

Management fee payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Set up fees payable

Other payables

Total liabilities

(f) Capital risk management

Less than 3 months
JPY'000

5,580
3,796
17,667
618
13,343
1,137
3,430
2,598
7,155
55,324

The Sub-Funds' capital is represented by the Units in the Sub-Funds and shown as net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable units in the Statement of Financial Position. In order to
achieve the investment objectives, the Sub-Funds endeavor to invest its capital in accordance
with the investment policies as outlined in the Prospectus, whilst maintaining sufficient liquidity
to meet redemption requests. Such liquidity is augmented by the holding of liquid investments.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement

The Sub-Funds classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflects unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
lighilities that the Sub-Funds have the ahility to access at measurement date;

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and are
therefore classified within Level 1.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are ohservable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2.

As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets andfor are subject
to transfer resfrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiguidity and/or non-transferability,
which are generally based on available market information.

Level 3 - Valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments where the valuation technigue includes inputs not based on observable data and
the unobservable inputs could have a significant impact on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are reguired to reflect differences
between the instruments.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against
the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs
that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in
its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or ability.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement (continued)

The determination of what constitutes “"observable” requires significant judgment by the
Managers. The Managers consider observable data to he that market data that is readily
available, regulary distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided
by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and
liahilities measured at fair value at the financial year ended 30 June 2019:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
JPYT000 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 10,566,401 - - 10,566,401
Total 10,566,401 - - 10,566,401
Fimancial liabilities
Financial ffabilities af fair
value through profit or foss
Futures (1,231) - - (1,231)

Total (1,231) - - (1,231)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement (continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY'000 JPY'000 JPYT000 JPY'000

Financial assets
Financial assefs at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 24 338,763 - - 24 338 763
Futures 2,774 - - 2,774
Total 24,341,537 - - 24,341,537
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund*

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD 000 usD'ood UsSD'000 UsSD'000

Financial assets

Financial assets al fair value

through profit or loss

Equity securities 27134 - - 27,134
Futuras 14 - - 14
Forwards - 1 - 1
Total 27,148 1 - 27,149

Financial liabilities

Financial fiabilifies af fair

value through profit or foss

Forwards*™ - - - -

Total - - - -

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Novemnber 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.
"Level 2 securnities which are less than 3500 are rounded fo zero.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Fimancial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 15,051,007 - - 15,051,007
Futures 187 - - 187
Total 15,051,284 - - 15,051,284
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement (continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and
liahilities measured at fair value at the financial year ended 30 June 2018:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPY'000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 18,062,718 - - 18,062,718
Total 18,052,718 - - 18,052,718
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
Futures {9,463) - - ({9,463)
Total (9,463) - - (9,463)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement (continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 3,005,757 - - 3,005,757
Total 3,005,757 - - 3,005,757
Fimancial liabilities
Financial ffabilities af fair
value through profit or foss
Futures (1,229) - - (1,229)
Total (1,229) - - (1,229)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Fimancial assets
Financial assefs at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 16,752,880 - - 16,752,880
Total 16,752,880 - - 16,752,880
Fimancial liabilities
Financial ffiabilities af fair
value through profit or foss
Futures (5,580) - - (5,580)
Total (5,580) - - (5,580)

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of
the financial year and are deemed to have occumed when the pricing source or methodology
used to price an invesiment has changed which triggers a change in level as defined under
IFRS 13. There were no fransfers hetween Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the financial year.

Assets and liabilities not camied at fair value are camied at amortised cost; their camying values
are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Cash includes deposits held with banks and other
shori-term investments in an active market and they are categorised as Level 1. Receivable for
investments sold and other receivables include the contractual amounts for seftlement of trades
and other obligations due to the Sub-Funds. Other payables represent the contractual amounts
and obligations due by the Sub-Funds for setflement of trades and expenses. All receivable and
payable balances are categorised as Level 2. The value of redeeming units is calculated based
on the net difference between total assets and all other liabilities. A demand feature is attached
to these units, as they are redeemable at the holders’ option and can be put back to the Sub-
Funds at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Sub-Fund's net asset
value attributable to the share class. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate
categorisation for the net assets attributable to holders of redeeming units.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

Apart from investments disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position which are classified as
at fair value through profit or loss, all other financial assets as disclosed in the Statement of
Financial Position, including other receivables, amounts due from broker and cash and cash
equivalents, are categorized as “other financial receivables”.

Financial lfabilifies

Apart from investments disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position which are classified as
fair value through profit or loss, all financial liabilities as disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position, including administration fee payable, management fee payable, trustee fee payable,
audit fee payable, amounts due to broker and other payables are categorised as "other financial
liahilities".

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category
The Sub-Funds hold exchange fraded FDI (futures).

A futures contract is an agreement between two parties to buy or sell a security or cumency at a
specific price or rate at a future date. The daily change in contract value is recorded as an
unrealised gain or loss and the Sub-Funds recognise a realised gain or loss when the contract
is closed. Unrealised gains and losses on futures contracts are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

As of 30 June 2019, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following FDI:

30 June 2019 Motional value Fair value

JPEY'000 JPY?000
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 328,021 (1,231)
Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund 428,062 2,774
Sernies 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund 350,548 187
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category (continued)

Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund*

Motional value Fair value
usD'o0o usD000
1,002 14

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Novemnber 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.

As of 30 June 2018, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following FDI:

30 June 2018

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Motional value Fair value
JPY'000 JPY?000
441,990 (9,463)

224 100 (1,229)
296,374 (5,580)

7. MNet gainloss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

Met loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments
Realisad loss on financial derivatives
Unrealised loss on investmenis

Unrealised gain on financial derivatives

30 June 2019
JPYT000

424 140
(39,409)
(1,883,350)
8,232
(1,490,387)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Net gain/loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019
JPY'000

MNet loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:

Realised loss on investments (276,680)
Realised loss on financial derivatives {30,152)
Unrealised loss on investments (2,134,978)
Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 4,004
(2,437,806)
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund* 30 June 2019
usD'000
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
Realised gain on investments 2,445
Realised gain on financial derivatives 25
Unrealised gain on investments 982
Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 16

3,468

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Novemnber 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2019
JPY* 000
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
Realised loss on investments (82,532)
Realised loss on financial derivatives (41,657)
Unrealised loss on investments (1,539,028)
Unrealised gain on financial derivatives b, 767
(1,657 ,450)
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2018
JPY'000
Met gain on fimancial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
Realised gain on investments 1,254,874
Realised gain on financial derivatives 28,044
Unrealised loss on investments (90,483)
Unrealised loss on financial derivatives {10,568)
1,181,867
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2018
JPY*000

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments 6,934,766
Realised gain on financial derivatives 224 830
Unrealised loss on investments {295,261)
Unrealised loss on financial derivatives {1,193)
6,868,142

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2018
JPY'000

Met gain on fimancial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments G642 994
Realised gain on financial derivatives 24,9749
Unrealised loss on investments (532,572)
Unrealised loss on financial derivatives (6,117)
129,284
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Redeemable units in issue

Redeemable participating units are classified as equity for Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund
and liability for Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&P
500 Fund. Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&P 500
Fund do not fulfil the criteria of having a single share class required to classify redeemable
participating units as equity. Redeemable participating units are camied at the redemption
amount that is payable at the date of the Statement of Financial Position if the holders exercise
their rights to put the units back to the Sub-Funds for cash at the relevant dealing day.

Redeemable participating units are issued and redeemed at the option of the holders at prices
based on the Sub-Funds’ NAY per unit at the time of issue or redemption.

The Sub-Funds' NAV per unit is calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to holders of
each class of redeemable paricipating units with the total number of outstanding redeemable
parficipating units for each respective class. In accordance with the provisions of the Sub-Funds’
regulations, investment positions are valued based on the quoted market prices for the purposs
of determining the NAV per unit for subscriptions and redemptions. Unitholders may redeem
their units on any dealing day which is daily in whole or in part. In addition, in accordance with
the explanatory memorandum, the preliminary expenses incurred in the formation of the Trust
and the Sub-Funds are borne by the Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX, Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund have two
classes of units in issue as at 30 June 2019, Class A and Class B. Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei
400 Fund has one class of units in issue as at and 30 June 2019, Class A.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

The movements of the Redeemable Participating Units during the financial year from 1 July

2018 to 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Uinits issued
Units redeemed

Number of units in issue at the end of the
financial year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000
Met asset value per unit - JFY'000

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued
Units redeemed

MNumber of units in issue at the end of the
financial year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000
Met asset value per unit - JEY'000

30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Class A Class B
10,624,500 38,891
2,750,000 -
(6,400,000) -
6,974,500 38,801
10,837,077 59 663
155 153

30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Class A Class B
109,000 39,423
1,215,000 413,000
(144,300) (449.400)
1,179,700 3023
24715217 63,545
20.95 21.02
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund* 30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Class A Class B

Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of the - }

financial year

Units issued 145,100 2,223

Units redeemed (119,685) -

;.I:amn:; 3I-::;l‘arll.lrllts in issue at the end of the 95,415 2223

Net assets aftributable to Unitholders - USD'000 27,996 209

Met asset value per unit - USD'000 1.10 0.08

“This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2019

Class A

Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of the 1,127,400

financial year

Units issued -

Units redeemed -

MNumber of units in issue at the end of the 1,127 400

financial year

Met assefs atiributable to equity Unitholders- 15,406,976

JPY000

Met asset value per unit - JEY'000 13.67
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 fund have two classes of units in issue as
at 30 June 2018, Class A and Class B. Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class of
units in issue as at 30 June 2018, Class A. The movements of the Redeemahble Participating

Units during the financial year from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Linits issued
Units redeemed

MNumber of units in issue at the end of the financial
year

MNet assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000
Met asset value per unit - JPY'000

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued
Units redeemed

MNumber of units in issue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000
Met asset value per unit - JEY'000

30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Class A Class B
17,303,000 -
2,560,000 38,891
(9,238,500) -
10,624,500 38,891
18,421 107 66,608
1.73 171
30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Class A Class B
1,178,000 -
2,110,000 343,023
(3,175,000} (303,600)
109,000 39423
2,362 401 867 526
2167 2201
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued
Units redeemed

Mumber of units in issue at the end of the financial
year

MNet assets aftributable to equity Unitholders-
JPY000

Met asset value per unit - JFY'000

9. Management fees

30 June 2018
Class A

85,400

1,939,000
(947,000)

1,127 400

17,061,803

1512

An aggregate amount of the management fees described below as (a), (b) and {c) is payable to
the Manager out of the assets of the Sub-Funds. The Manager will pay, out of the management
fees, the fees of the Investment Manager and the Distributor, as allocated by the Manager as
follows, subject to its absolute discretion. The management fees are calculated on each
Valuation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY quarterly in arrears for Series 2016 Topix
Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and payable in US

Dollars quarterly in amears for Series 2018 S&F 500 Fund.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
9. Management fees (continued)

(a) For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkel
225 Fund the Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an
annual rate of 0.02% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds. For Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund the
Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund the following Net Asset
Value percentage per Class: Class A - 0.02% and Class B - 0.04%.

(b) Investment Manager Fes:

For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei
225 Fund the Investment Manager is entitied to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a
fee at annual rate of: (i) 0.07% of the MAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate
MNAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or less than JPY25 billion; (i) 0.06% of the NAV of
the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate MAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than
JPY25 hillion and equal or less than JPYS0 billion; and (i) 0.05% of the NAY of the Sub-
Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than JPY50
billion, provided that the Investment Manager shall be entited fo a minimum of
JPY10,000,000 per annum. For Series 2018 S&F 500 Fund the Investment Manager is
enfitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: (i) 0.11% of the
MNAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal
to or less than USD250 million; (i) 0.10% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the
aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than USD250 million and equal or less than
USDE00 milion; and (i) 009% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the
aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than USD500 million, provided that the
Investment Manager shall be entitied to a minimum of USD100,000 per annum.

(c) For all Sub-Funds the Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a
fee at an annual rate of 0.05% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY20,361,646 (30 June 2018: JPY2T,758,067) with JPYS,264,100 (30 June 2018:
JPY12,318,149) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY30,866,252 (30 June 2018: JPY36,904,711) with JPY18,087,202 (30 June
2018: JPY18,641,622) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. Management fees (continued)

The invesiment management fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year
amounted to USDE3,826, with USDE3,826 in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial
year amounted to JPYZ22 358 852 (30 June 2018: JPY17 342 597) with JPY10,622 730 (30
June 2018: JPY13,342 840) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

10. Trustee fees

Intertrust Cornporate Services (Cayman) Limited (the “Trusteg”™) is entitlied to receive out of the
assets of the Sub-Funds, the annual Trustee Fee of USD2 500 payable quarterly in amears,
plus fees for additional time, disbursements, out-of-pocket expenses and start-up expenses.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY316,638 (30 June 2018: JPY316,237) with JPYNil (30 June 2018. JPYNIl) in outstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY316,638 (30 June 2018: JPY316,237) with JPYNIl (30 June 2018: JPYNiIl) in outstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2018 S&FP 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
USDT 744 with USDNIl in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year. This Sub-Fund
launched on 27 November 20138, therefore there are no comparatives.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY 316,638 (30 June 2018: JPY316,235) with JPYNIl (30 June 2018: JPYNIl) in outstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
11. Administrator fees

For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225
Fund the Adminisirator is entitled o receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at annual
rate of. (i) 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-
Funds which is equal to or less than JPY10 billion; (i) 0.06% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds for
any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Funds which is more than JFY10 billion and equal
or less than JPY25 billion; (i) 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds for amy portion of the
aggregate MNAY of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPY25 billion and equal or less than
JPYE0 billion; and (iv) 0.04% of the NAVY of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAY
of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPY50 hillion, provided that the Administrator shall be
entitled to a minimum of JEY 720,000 per month.

The Administrator Fee is calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The
Administrator Fee is payable in Japanese Yen quarterly in amears.

The Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-Funds for its disbursements and out-of-pocket
EXDENSES.

For Series 2018 S&F 500 Fund the Administrator is entitled o receive out of the assets of the
Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: {i) 0.07% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the
aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or less than USD 100 milliorn; (i) 0.06% of the
NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is more than
USD 100 million and equal or less than USD 250 million; (iiiy 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 250 million and
equal or less than USD 500 million; and (iv) 0.04% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion
of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 500 million, provided that the
Administrator shall be entitled to & minimum of USD 6,000 per month. The Administrator Fee
will be calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The Administrator Fee shall
be payable in US Dollars quarterly in amears. The Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-
Fund for its disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPYS 746628 (30 June 2018 JPY12 844 082) with JPY9263928 (30 June 2018:
JPY19,655,307) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY14,661,030 (30 June 2018: JPY16,743,907) with JPY15,008,748 (30 June 2018:
JPY23, 397 ,947) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
11. Administrators fees (continued)

The Administrator fees for the Series 2018 S&F 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
USD42, 608 with USD42 608 in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year. This Sub-
Fund launched on 27 Movember 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY10,577,314 (30 June 2018: JPYT,323,726) with JFY3,807,072 (30 June 2018:
JPY1T 667 047) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

12. Custodian fees

For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225
Fund, State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custodian™) is entitled to receive
out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-
Funds, provided that the Custodian shall be entitled to a minmimum of JPY 120,000 per month.
The Custodian Fee will be calculated each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The
Custodian Fee shall be payable in Japanese Yen quarterly in armears.

For Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, the Custodian is entitled o receive out of the assets of the Sub-
Fund a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund, provided that the Custodian
shall be entitied to a minimum of USD 1,000 per month. The Custodian Fee will be calculated
on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The Custodian Fee shall be payable in US
Dollars quarterly in armrears. The Custodian will be reimbursed by the Sub-Fund for its
disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY1T7 674,686 (30 June 2018: JPY19,670706) with JPY20645683 (30 June 2018
JPY 2T 073,839 in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY3,645 449 (30 June 2018: JPY2,280,1958) with JFY690,680 (30 June 2018: JPY5,531,227)
in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
UsSD11,813 with USD11,813 in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year. This Sub-Fund
launched on 27 Movember 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
12. Custodian fees (continued)

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY3,871,562 (30 June 2018: JPY1,927,088) with JPYS915,089 (30 June 2018:
JPY1,136,502) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

13. License fees

Fees incurred in connection with the reference to a licensed index are paid to the JPX-Mikkei
Index 400 licensor, Mikkei 225 Index licensor, S&P 500 Index licensor and TOPEX Index licensor
and borne by the Sub-Funds.

The License fee for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund and the Series 2016 Mikkei 225
Fund is 0.02% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds provided that the licensor shall be entitled to a
minimum of JPY100,000 per annum for each of these Sub-Funds. For Series 2018 S&F Fund it
is 0.01% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund. For the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund is (i) 0.01% of the NAV
of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is less than JPY10
billion; (i) 0.005% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-
Fund which is equal or more than JPY10 billion and less than JPYS0 billion; (i) 0.003% of the
NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal or
more than JPY50 hillion and less than JPY100 billion; {iv) 0.002% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than JPY100
billion and less than JPY300 billion; (v) 0.001% of the MAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of
the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than JPY300 hillion and less than
JPYED0 billion and (vi) 0.0005% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate
MNAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than JPY500 billion, provided that the licensor
shall be entitled to a minimum of JFY100,000 per annum.

The License fee will be calculated on each Valuation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY
except Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, will be payable in US Dollars.

The License fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY1,180,191 (30 June 2018; JPY225,247) with JPYNil (30 June 2018: JPYMNIl) in outstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.

The License fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY4,150 441 (30 June 2018 JPY5,215,069) with JPYNIl (30 June 2018 JPYNIl) in outstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
13. License fees (continued)

The License fee for the Seres 2018 S&F 500 Fund for the financial period amounted to
USDE, 878 with USDNIl in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year. This Sub-Fund
launched on 27 Movember 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.

The License fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted
to JPY2,897,630 (30 June 2018: JPYZ,768,921) with JPYNil (30 June 2018: JPYNIl) in
oltstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

14. Distribution

The Sub-Funds' investments are expected 1o generate a certain amount of income on a periodic
basis.

It is the current intention of the Manager (although it is under no obligation to do so) to make
semi-annual distributions in February and August for Class A, and in May and Movember for
Class B of each year to Unitholders of record of the Sub-Funds on the Business Day
immediately preceding the relevant distribution date.

Distributions may be made out of the net income, realised and unrealised capital gains net of
realised and unrealised losses and capital of the Sub-Funds for the relevant financial year, or in
such other manner as specified in the Trust Deed. The Manager has complete discretion as to
the amount and timing of the distributions payable to the Unitholders of the Sub-Funds.

However, the Manager will on each occasion consult with the Investment Manager as to the
amount of such distributions and will rely on the Administrator's continuing calculations and
information as to the amount available to be distributed based on the possibility of continuing
sustainable pay-out amounts on such semi-annual basis.

All distributions will be paid net of any taxes required to he withheld.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
14. Distribution (continued)

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2019:

Series 2016 Series 2016 . Series 2016
TOPIX  JPX Nikkei 400 Series 2018 Nikkei 225

S&P 500
Fund Fund Fund* Fund
Ex-date JPY000 JPY'000 USD'000 JPY'000
01 August 2018 156,035 140,161 . -
01 November 2018 470 - 18,191
01 February 2019 82554 131,611 88 .
07 May 2019 552 - - 603
Total distribution 239,611 271,772 88 18,704

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 Novemnber 1B, therefore there are no comparatives.

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2018:

Series 2016 Series 2016 JPX Series 2016 Nikkei

TOPIX Fund Nikkei 400 Fund 225 Fund
Ex-date JPY000 JPY000 JPY'000
01 August 2017 199,710 - 11,930
01 February 2018 98,675 98,111 153,652
01 May 2018 487 - 12,588
Total distribution 298,872 98,111 178,170

15. Taxation

The Trust and its sub-funds are not subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in
the Cayman Islands. The only taxes which will be chargeable on the Trust and its Sub-Funds in
the Cayman Islands are nominal amounts payable to the registrar of Sub-Funds.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15. Taxation (continued)

The Sub-Funds are registered as an exempted trust pursuant to Section 74 of the Trusts Law.
The Trustee has obtained a tax exemption cerificate from the Govemor-in-Cabinet of the
Cayman Islands, which provides that, for a period of 50 years from the date of the creation of
the Sub-Funds, no law that is thereafier enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax or
duty to be levied on income or on capital assets, gains, or appreciation or any tax in the nature
of estate duty or inheritance tax will apply to any property comprised in the Sub-Funds, or to any
income arising under the Sub-Funds or to the Trustee or to the Unitholders in respect of any
such property or income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in thess
financial statements.

Unitholders will not be subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the Cayman
Islands, with respect to the Units owned by them and distributions received on such Units, nor
will they be subject to any estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman Islands. There are no
exchange controls in Cayman.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-Funds may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Investment income is recorded gross of such taxes.

The Trust and its Sub-Funds have been formed as a unit trust under the Cayman Islands law.
The Trust and its Sub-Funds are assumed to be treated as a foreign investment frust, as a
matter of Japanese law, which is similar to a securfies investment trust under the Law
conceming Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations of Japan. Further, it is anticipated
that the Sub-Funds are not listed on any stock exchange.

The Cayman Islands are not party to any double taxation treaties. Under curment Cayman
Islands law no tax will be charged in the Cayman Islands on profits or gains of the Sub-Funds
and dividends of the Sub-Funds will be payable to Unitholders reside in or outside the Cayman
Islands without deduction of tax. No stamp duty is levied in the Cayman Islands on the transfer
or redemption of Units in the Sub-Funds. The Sub-Funds invest in securities issued by entities
which are domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands.

Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes are
required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be
deducted by the Sub-Funds' broker on a "withholding” basis.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
16. Transactions with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party to
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decision.

Details of the related party transactions are included in Motes 9 and 10.
There are no other related party transactions during the financial year.
17. Comparative period

The comparative amounts in these financial statements are for the financial year ended 30 June
2018.

18. Significant events during the financial year
Series 2018 S&P 500 launched on 27 November 2018, therefore there are no comparatives.
There were no other significant events during the financial year.

19. Post Balance Sheet events

There are no significant events after the financial year end date that would have an impact to
the financial statements.

20. Approval of the fimancial statements

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Trustee on 19 December 2019.
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As at 30 June 2019
Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%)
Advertising: 0.64% (30 June 2018: 0.81%)
42,000 Dentsu Inc 157,920 0.64
157,920 0.64
Aerospace & Defense: 0.08% (30 June 2018: 0.11%)
4200 1HI Com 10,907 0.04
4200  Kawasaki Heavy Industries Ltd 10,639 0.04
21,546 0.08
Agriculture; 0.40% (30 June 2018: 0.48%)
42000 Japan Tobacco Inc 99,939 0.40
99,939 0.40
Airlines: 0.06% (30 June 2018: 0.06%)
4200 AMA Holdings Inc 14,986 0.06
14,986 0.06
Auto Manufacturers: 3.80% (30 June 2018: 4.07%)
42 000 Hino Motors Lid 38,004 0.15
84,000 Honda Mator Co Lid 233,840 0.94
21,000 Isuzu Maotors Lid 25,767 010
8,400 Mazda Motor Comp 9446 0.04
4 200 Mitsubishi Motors Corp 2167 0.04
42000 Nissan Motor Co Lid 32 407 013
42000 Subaru Corp 108,598 0.44
42000 Suzuki Motor Corp 212 688 0.86
42000 Toyota Motor Corp 280 896 1.13
045,403 3.80
Auto Parts & Equipment: 2.39% (30 June 2018: 2.48%)
42000 Bridgestone Corp 178,164 072
42000 Denso Corp 190,386 077
42000 JTEKT Comp 54 852 022
42000  NGK Insulators Ltd 65,982 0.27
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Auto Parts & Equipment: 2.39% (30 June 2018: 2.48%) (continued)

42,000 Sumitomo Electric Industries Ltd 59,409 024
21,000 Yokohama Rubber Co Lid 41,580 017
590,373 239

Banks: 0.69% (30 June 2018: 0.81%)

4200 Apzora Bank Lid 10,861 0.04
42 000 Chiba Bank Lid 22 092 0.09
42 000 Concordia Financial Group Lid 16,842 0.07

8,400 Fukuoka Financial Group Inc 16,523 0.07
42 000 Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc 21,504 0.09
42 000 Mizuho Financial Group Inc 6,556 0.03

4200 Resona Holdings Inc 1,884 0.0

4200 Shinsei Bank Lid 7027 0.03
42 000 Shizuoka Bank Lid 33,348 013

4200 Sumitomao Mitsui Financial Group Inc 15,985 0.06

4200 Sumitomao Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc 16,405 0.07

169,027 0.69

Beverages: 1.49% (30 June 2018; 1.65%)
42000  Asahi Group Holdings Ltd 203,490 083
42000  Kirin Holdings Co Ltd 97,587 039

8,400 Sapporo Holdings Ltd 19,060 0.08
42000  Takara Holdings Inc 47,334 0.19

3674711 1.49
Building Materials: 3.01% (30 June 2018: 2.74%)

8,400 AGC Inc 31,280 013
42000  Daikin Industries Lid 580,730 238

4,200 Nippon Sheet Glass Co Ltd 3079 0.0

4,200 Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co Ltd 17,976 o.o7

4,200 Taiheiyo Cement Corp 13,602 0.06
21,000 TOTO Ltd 89 355 0.36

746,122 J.01
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Chemicals: 5.16% (30 June 2018: 5.52%)

42000 Asahi Kasei Corp 48 237 0.19
&,400 Denka Co Lid 26,838 011
4200 DIC Comp 11,845 0.05

42 000 Kuraray Co Lid 54 054 022

21,000 Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Corp 15,805 0.06
8,400 Mitsui Chemicals Inc 22403 0.09

42 000 Mippon Kayaku Co Lid 54 474 023

42 000 Missan Chemical Corp 203,910 0.82

42 000 Nitto Denko Corp 223314 0.80

42 000 Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Lid 421 470 1.70
4200 Showa Denko KK 13,314 0.05

42 000 Sumitomo Chemical Co Lid 21,000 0.08
8,400 Teijin Lid 15431 0.06

42 000 Tokai Carbon Co Lid AT 208 0.19
8,400 Tokuyama Corp 24 461 0.10

42 000 Toray Industries Inc 34 406 0.14

21,000 Tosoh Corp 31,815 013
4200 Ube Industries Lid 9383 0.04

1,279,468 516

Commercial Services: 3.73% (30 June 2018: 3.07%)
21,000 Dai Nippon Printing Co Ltd 48 216 0.19
126,000 Recruit Holdings Co Ltd 452 844 183
42000 Secom Co Ltd 389 508 157
21,000 Toppan Printing Co Ltd 34 335 0.14
024,903 3.73

Computers: 1.42% (30 June 2018: 2.89%)

4200 Fuijitsu Ltd 31,550 013
4,200 NEC Corp 17,808 0.o07
210,000 NTT Data Corp 301,350 122
350,708 1.42
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Cosmetics & Personal Care: 2.77% (30 June 2018: 2.67%)

42,000 Kao Corp 344 820 1.39
42,000 Shiseido Co Ltd 341,082 1.38
685,902 207
Distribution & Wholesale: 2.09% (30 June 2018: 2.07%)
42000  |TOCHU Com 86,541 035
42,000  Marubeni Corp 29,946 0.12
42 000 Mitsubishi Corp 119,280 048
42,000  Mitsui & Co Ltd 73,668 0.30
4200  Sojitz Corp 1,453 0.01
42000  Sumitomo Corp 68,565 028
42000  Toyota Tsusho Corp 137,130 0.55
516,583 2.09
Diversified Financial Services: 0.52% (30 June 2018: 0.62%)
42,000 Credit Saison Co Ltd 52 962 0.21
42000  Daiwa Securities Group Inc 19,823 0.08
42,000 Matsui Securities Co Lid 42 672 0.17
42000  Momura Holdings Inc 15,935 0.06
131,397 0.52
Electric: 0,06% (30 June 2018: 0.06%)
4200  chubu Electric Power Co Inc 6,348 0.03
4200  Kansai Electric Power Co Inc 5,185 0.02
4200  Tokyo Electric Power Co Holdings Inc 2,360 0.01
13,893 0.06
Electrical Components & Equipment: 0.42% (30 June 2018: 0.53%)
42,000 Casio Computer Co Ltd 56,196 023
42,000 Fuijikura Ltd 17,010 007
4200  Furukawa Electric Co Lid 13,251 0.05
8400 (5 Yuasa Corp 17 455 0.07
103,912 0.42
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Mominal

Fair Value % of Total
JPY'000 Net Assets

42,000
84,000
42,000
12,600
42,000

8,400
42,000
42,000
42,000

42,000
42,000
42,000
21,000
42,000
42,000

8,400

4,200

8,400

42,000
42,000
42,000

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)

Electronics: 6.35% (30 June 2018: 3.83%)

Alps Alpine Co Ltd

kyocera Corp

Minebea Mitsumi Inc

Mippon Electric Glass Co Lid
Omron Corp

SCREEMN Holdings Co Ltd
Taiyo Yuden Co Lid

TDK Corp

Yokogawa Electric Corp

Engineering & Construction: 1.35% (30 June 2018: 1.63%)

Chiyoda Corp

COMSYS Holdings Corp
JGC Corp

Kajima Corp

Obayashi Corp

Shimizu Corp

Taisei Corp

Entertainment: 0.08% (30 June 2018: 0.06%)

Toho Co Ltd

Environmental Control: 0.01% (30 June 2018: 0.02%)

Hitachi £Zosen Corp

Food: 3.49% (30 June 2018: 3.31%)
Agon Co Ltd

Ajinomoto Co Inc
Kikkoman Corp
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76,272 0.31
590,040 238
76,650 0.31
34,385 0.14
236,040 0.95
37,758 0.15
84,210 0.34
350,280 1.41
88,704 0.36
1,575,239 6.35
12,138 0.05
114,744 0.46
62,076 0.25
31,038 0.13
44 562 0.18
37,590 0.15
32,886 0.13
335,034 1.35
19,236 0.08
19,236 0.08
3,318 0.01
3,318 0.0
77,742 0.31
78,456 0.32
196,080 0.79
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Food: 3.49% (30 June 2018: 3.31%) (continued)

4,200 Maruha Nichiro Corp 13,263 0.05
8,400 MEIJ Holdings Co Lid 64,680 0.26
21,000 MH Foods Ltd 96,915 0.35
21000  Nichirei Comp 53 607 0.22
42 000 Mippon Suisan Kaisha Lid 28,056 0.1
42 000 Misshin Seifun Group Inc 103278 042
42 000 Seven & i Holdings Co Lid 153,216 0.62
866,313 3.49

Forest Products & Paper: 0.14% (30 June 2018: 0.13%)
4,200 Mippon Paper Industries Co Ltd 8,014 003
42,000 Oji Holdings Comp 26,124 0.11
34,138 0.14

Gas: 0.15% (30 June 2018:; 0.16%)

8,400 (Osaka Gas Co Ltd 15,767 0.06
8,400 Tokyo Gas Co Lid 21,315 0.09
37,082 0.15

Hand & Machine Tools: 0.13% (30 June 2018:; 0.13%)

&.400 Fuji Eleciric Co Ltd 31,206 0.13
31,206 0.13

Healthcare Products: 2.99% (30 June 2018: 2.61%)
168,000 Olympus Cormp 200,928 081
168,000 Terumeo Corp 539 280 218
740,208 2.99

Home Builders: 0.87% (30 June 2018&: 0.93%)

42000  Daiwa House Industry Co Lid 131,922 053
8,400 Haseko Corp 9 156 0.04
42000 Sekisui Hous= Ltd 74,571 0.30
215,649 0.87
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
MNominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Home Furnishings: 1.11% (30 June 2018: 1.13%)

42,000 FPanasonic Corp 37,699 0.15
42,000 Sony Corp 23T 216 0.96
274,915 1.11

Insurance: 1.18% (30 June 2018: 1.08%)

4200 Dai-ichi Life Holdings Inc 6,825 0.03
42 000 Japan Post Holdings Co Lid 51,240 o
12,600 MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc 43,082 017
10,500 Sompo Holdings Inc 43 690 0.18

8,400 Sony Fimnancial Holdings Inc 21,739 0.09

8,400 TAD Holdings Inc 9,824 0.04
21,000 Tokio Marine Holdings Inc 113,379 0.46

289,789 1.18
Internet: 1.18% (30 June 2018: 1.12%)

8,400 CyberAgent Inc 32 802 013
42 000 Rakuten Inc 53,760 022
42 000 Trend Micro Inc 201 810 081
16,800  Yahoo Japan Corp 5,309 0.02

293,681 1.18
Iron & Steel: 0.13% (30 June 2018: 0.19%)

8,400 Japan Steel Works Lid 15,112 0.06

4,200 JFE Holdings Inc 6,646 0.03

4,200 Kobe Stee| Lid 2961 0.0

4,200 Nippon Steel Comp 7,766 0.03

32,485 0.13

Leisure Time: 1.28% (30 June 2018: 1.40%)
21,000 Tokyo Dome Corp 21,399 0.09
42000 Yamaha Corp 215,040 087
42000  ‘Yamaha Motor Co Ltd 80,430 0.32
316,869 1.28
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Machinery — Diversified: 4.93% (30 June 2018: 4.91%)

42,000 Amada Holdings Co Lid 50,946 o
&,400 Ebara Corp 24 562 0.10
42000 FANUC Cormp 837,060 338
42 000 Kubota Comp 75,306 0.20
8,400 OKUMA Corp 46 452 0.19
8,400 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Lid 122 013
42 000 Yaskawa Electric Corp 153,720 0.62
1,219,168 493
Machinery Construction & Mining: 1.36% (30 June 2018: 1.40%)
42 000 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Lid 117 684 0.47
8,400 Hitachi Lid 33172 013
42 000 Komatsu Lid 109,200 0.44
42 000 Mitsubishi Elecfric Corp 59 598 024
4200 Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Lid 19,702 0.08
339,356 1.36
Media: 0.01% (30 June 2018: 0.01%)
4200 SKY Perfect JSAT Holdings Inc 1,764 oo
1,764 0.01
Metal Fabricate & Hardware: 0.26% (30 June 2018: 0.31%)
42000 MNSK Lid 40,320 0.16
42000 NTN Corp 13,440 0.05
4,200 Toho Zinc Co Lid 10,475 0.05
64,235 0.26
Mining: 0.56% (30 June 2018: 0.69%)
8,400 Dowa Holdings Co Lid 29,022 012
4,200 Mitsubishi Materials Corp 12,873 0.05
4,200 Mitsui Mining & Smelting Co Lid 10,819 0.04
42,000 Nippon Light Metal Holdings Co Ltd 9,786 0.04
4200 Pacific Metals Co Lid 9,345 0.04
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Mominal

Fair Value % of Total
JPY'000 Net Assets

21,000

42,000
42,000
4,200

63,000
42,000
42,000
84,000

16,829
16,800
42,000

42,000

210,000
42,000
42,000
42,000
42,000

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Mining: 0.56% (30 June 2018: 0.69%) (continued)

Sumitomo Metal Mining Co Lid

Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 1.21% (30 June 2018: 0.94%)

FUJIFILM Holdings Corp
Mikon Corp
Toyobo Co Lid

Office & Business Equipment: 1.74% (30 June 2018: 1.76%)

Canon Inc
Konica Minolta Inc
Ricoh Co Ltd

Seiko Epson Corp

Oil & Gas: 0.38% (30 June 2018: 0.45%)

Idemitsu Kosan Co Ltd
Inpex Corp
JXTG Holdings Inc

Packaging & Containers: 0.36% (30 June 2018: 0.30%)
Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Lid

Pharmaceuticals: 7.46% (30 June 2018: 7.21%)

Astellas Pharma Inc

Chugai Phammaceutical Co Ltd
Diaiichi Sankyo Co Ltd

Eisai Co Ltd

Kyowa Kirin Co Ltd
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67,599 0.27
139,444 0.56
220,446 0.93

64,008 0.26

5401 0.02
298,855 1.21
198,198 0.80

44,058 0.18

45,192 0.18
143,220 0.58
430,668 1.74

54,526 0.22

16,318 0.07

22 445 0.09

93,289 0.38

89,796 0.36

89,796 0.36
322,350 1.30
205,680 1.19
236,670 0.96
255,822 1.03

81,438 0.33
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Pharmaceuticals: 7.46% (30 June 2018:; 7.21%) (continued)

42 000 Otsuka Holdings Co Lid 147,672 0.60
42 000 Shionogi & Co Lid 260,778 1.05
42 000 Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma Co Ltd 85,806 0.35
42 000 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 160,566 0.65
1,846,782 7.46
Real Estate: 1.63% (30 June 2018: 1.59%)
42000  Mitsubishi Estate Co Ltd 84,210 034
42000  Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd 109,725 044
42,000 Sumitomo Realty & Development Co Ltd 161,616 0.65
21,000 Tokyo Tatemono Co Lid 25137 010
42,000  Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Corp 24,890 0.10
405,678 1.63
Retail: 13.60% (30 June 2018: 11.01%)
42 000 Citizen Watch Co Lid 23,226 0.09
168,000 FamilyMart UNY Holdings Co Ltd 432 096 1.74
42 000 Fast Retailing Co Ltd 2,735 460 11.05
42000 Isetan Mitsukoshi Holdings Ltd 36,708 015
21,000 J Front Retailing Co Ltd 25,835 010
42000 Marui Group Co Ltd 92148 037
21,000 Takashimaya Co Ltd 24 80 010
3,370,374 13.60
Semiconductors: 3.59% (30 June 2018: 3.69%)
84,000 Advantest Corp 249 060 1.0
4,200 SUMCO Corp 5384 0.02
42000 Tokyo Electron Lid 635,040 256
880 484 3.50
Shipbuilding: 0.02% (30 June 2018: 0.02%)
4,200 Mitsui E&S Holdings Co Lid 4170 0.02
4170 0.02
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPYC000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Japan: 98.23% (30 June 2018: 93.06%) (continued)
Software: 0.97% (30 June 2018: 0.97%)

12600 DeNA Co Ltd 26,019 0.11
42,000 Konami Holdings Corp 212,100 0.86
238119 0.97

Telecommunications: 8.41% (30 June 2018: 6.92%)
252,000 KDDI Corp 691,362 279
8,400 Nippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp 42143 017
42 000 Misshinbo Holdings Inc 34 566 014
4,200 Ntt DoCoMo Inc 10,652 0.04
4,200 Oki Electric Industry Co Lid 5,649 0.02
252,000 SoftBank Group Corp 1,301,580 525
2,085,852 8.41

Textiles: 0.01% (30 June 2018: 0.04%)

4200 Unitika Ltd 1,621 oo
1,621 0.01

Transportation: 2.56% (30 June 2018: 2.47%)
4 200 Central Japan Railway Co 90,636 037
4 200 East Japan Railway Co 42 336 017
4 200 Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha Lid 5523 0.02
8,400 Keio Corp 59 556 024
21,000 Keisei Electric Railway Co Ltd 82 425 033
21,000 Mitsubishi Logistics Corp 62 244 025
4 200 Mitsui OSK Lines Ltd 10,832 0.04
4 200 Nippon Express Co Ltd 24 066 0.10
4 200 Nippon Yusen KK 7262 0.03
21,000 Odakyu Electric Railway Co Lid 55,377 022
8,400 Tobu Railway Co Lid 26,376 011
21,000 Tokyu Comp 40131 0.16
4 200 West Japan Railway Co 36,607 0.15
42000 Yamato Holdings Co Lid 9z 022 037
635,393 2.56

Total Common Stock 24,338,763 98.23
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Open Futures Contracts®: 0.01% (30 June 2018: (0.04)%)

Noof Average Unrealised Gain /% O
contracts cost price JPY'000 Assets
16,000 21,119 Mikkei 225 (OSE) September 2019 2457 0.01
2,400 21,123 Nikkei 225 Mini September 2019 7 0.00
Total Unrealised Gain on Futures Contract 2,774 0.01

Total investments at fair value through profit or

loss 24,341,537 98.24
Cash and cash equivalent 280,564 113
Cash at broker 166,336 0.67
Other assets and liabilities {9,675) (0.04)
Met assets attributable to holders of redeemable

units 24,778,762 100.00

*The broker for Futures Contracts s Mizuho Securities Singapore.
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2019 10

26,917,854,162

53,722,021

26,864,132,141

1,179,700

3,023

22,713.60

22,789.56
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(2019 10 )
2,500 27 2,200
25,000,001 25,000,000
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AIFM AIFMD FCA
FCA J.P.
AIFM
AIFMD
2019 10
2019 10

13 1,620
1 375
19 769
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131

2019 10 31
108.88
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2018 12 31
2018 2017

13 15,039,799 1,637,533 17,004,256 1,851,423
14 1,366,872 148,825 1,236,755 134,658
16,406,671 1,786,358 18,241,011 1,986,081
15 (2,531,571) (275,637) (1,495,751) (162,857)
13,875,100 1,510,721 16,745,260 1,823,224
13,875,100 1,510,721 16,745,260 1,823,224
16 25,000,002 2,722,000 25,000,002 2,722,000
34,864 3,79 34,864 3,79
(11,159,766) (1,215,075) (8,289,606) (902,572)
13,875,100 1,510,721 16,745,260 1,823,224

2019 18

2019 18
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J.P.

2018 12 31
2018 2017

2,298,136 250,221 3,651,421 397,567

(1,829,170) (199,160)  (1,879,542) (204,645)

(3,471,754) (378,005)  (3,108,726) (338,478)

7 33,904 3,691 2,487 271

(2,968,884) (323,252)  (1,334,360) (145, 285)

117,398 12,782 46,813 5,097

(18,674) (2,033) (4,775) (520)

10 (2,870,160) (312,503)  (1,292,322) (140,708)
11

(2,870,160) (312,503)  (1,292,322) (140,708)

2017
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J.P.
2018 12 31
2017
25,000,002 2,722,000 34,864 3,796 (6,997,284)  (761,864) 18,037,582 1,963,932
(1,292,322)  (140,708)  (1,292,322)  (140,708)
2017 12 31
25,000,002 2,722,000 34,864 3,796 (8,289,606)  (902,572) 16,745,260 1,823,224
(2,870,160)  (312,503) (2,870,160)  (312,503)
2018 12 31
25,000,002 2,722,000 34,864 3,796 (11,159,766) (1,215,075) 13,875,100 1,510,721

214/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

J.P.
Jp
JpP E14
5JP 25
101 FRS 101
FRS 101 EU
IFRS
2006
FRS 101 EU IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
46 52
1AS 38 1AS
1AS 79(a) (iv)
IFRS 1AS 16
1AS 40A- D
1AS
1AS 30 31
IAS 24 17 1AS 24

IAS 24
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2018 12 31

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

2018

IFRS

IFRS

2018

IFRS

15

15

15

IFRS

IFRS 15

2018

IAS 39

IFRS 15
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IFRS 9
IFRS
19
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
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4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

2018 IFRS
IFRS IFRS
IFRS
IFRS

IAS 39
IFRS IAS 39

4.9.1
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IFRS

IAS 39
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SPPI

SPPI

4.9.2

IFRS

IAS 39
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ECL

ECL 1
(
)
12
ECL
( )
ECL
ECL
SICR SICR
ECL
PD
LGD
EAD IFRS
IFRS
ECL
4.9.3
IFRS 1AS 39
4.10
a)
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IFRS
2018 2017
2,298,136 3,651,421
(1,829,170) (1,879,542)
468,966 1,771,879
JP
46,813 4,775
2018 2017

33,904 2,487
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2018 2017
117,398 46,813
2018 2017
18,674 4,775
2018 2017
83,430 24,567
28,680 24,055
1,625,099 1,436,386
262,064 242,178
154,951 141,404
278,572 227,569
2017
2017 806,310 498,626 2017
2018 2017
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2017  19.25
2018 2017
(2,870,160) (1,292,322)
(545,330) (248,728)
14,582 2,792
530,748 245,936
2018 2017
34,318 480,935
742 15,261
4,355 185,653
3 1
3 3

224/280



2018

2017

2017

13

JP

14

JP

15

JP
439,542
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200,000 2006
LTIP
455,276
14,716
2018 2017
1,366,872 633,641
603,114
1,366,872 1,236,755
2018 2017
1,455,104 523,711
1,076,467 972,040
2,531,571 1,495,751
543,543 2017
2018 2017

225/280



2017

17

2018

18

19
LTIP

2017
25,000,000
25,000,000
104,923
JP
2018 15
86 2017 67
RSU
50 50

RSU

2017

93,268

2022

LTI
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25,000,002 25,000,002

2015
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RSU SAR
2017 2018
10
2018 12 31 110.72 2017 92.01
278,572 2017 227,569
19 IFRS
IFRS
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Balance sheet

3 Decambar 18 27
Nots 5

Currant assats

Cash and cash equivalenis 13 15,039,759 17,004,266

Dabiars 14 1,366,672 1,836,755

16,408,671 18,244,014

Currant llabliitles

Creditors: amounts faling due within one year 15 (2,531,571} {1,496, 751)

Not curront assats 13,875,100 15,745 260

Nat assats 13,875,100 16,745,260

Equity

Called-up shara capllal 18 25,000,002 28,000,002

Olhar resenes 34,064 34 BG4

Accumulsled losses {11,159,768) {8,268,808)

Total equity 13,875,100 16,748,280

The notes on pages 17 - 27 form an integral part of these financlal statements.

The financial statements on pages 14 - 27 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2019 and signed on its behalf
by:

2%

Matthew Melling
Director

Date: 18 April 2019

=15-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Income statement

Yoar ended 31 Decambar M8 017
Note 3 ]
Oiperating income ] 2,298,136 3651 4
Operaling expense G [1.828.170) (1,870,542}
Adminisirative cxperses [3.471,754) (3.108,726)
Cither income 7 33,904 2487
Oparating loss {2,9648,884) (1,334,360
Intarest and similar income ] 117,308 45813
Inberes] expense and similar charges 9 {1B.674) (4.775]
Loss bafors Incoma tax 1o (2,870,160) (1,292,322|
Incoma tax 1 - —_
Loss for the financial year (2,870,180} (1,282,32%)

Statement of comprehensive income

There were no other llems of comprehensive income o expense other than the loss for the financial year shown above (2017: Snd)
As a rasult, loss for the financial year represents total comprehensive expense in both the current and prior financial year,

The notes on pagas 17 - 27 farm an integral part of thess financial staterments.

4.

229/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooaod

J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity

Called-up Othor Accumulated

shara capital LT losses Totak equity

% § 3 5

Balanca &s at 1 January 2017 28,000,002 34 864 |8,207,264) 18,037 842
Less Sor the inancial year _ — (1,282,323) (1.292.322)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 25,000,002 34,854 (8,285, 608) 18,745,260
Lass for the financial yaar — —  (2E70,160) (2,870,160
Balance as a8t 31 Deacember 2018 25,000,002 34884 [11,158,T66) 13,878,100

Crtheer reserves relate to share based payment awards granted to employees by the Comipany

The notes on pages 17 - 27 form an integral part of these fingncial statements

16 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

1. Ganeral information

The Company Is a private Emited cormpany incorporated and damiciled in England and Wales. The Company's immediate parent
undenaking is The Bear Stearns Companies LLC, incorporaled in the state of Delaware in tha United States of America (*U.5.") The
Company's ultimate parent undertaking, and the parent underlaking of the only group in which the resulls of the Company are
consoldated, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the "Fiem" or "JPMorgan Chasa"), which is incomporated in the state af Delaware n the
U.5. The congolidated financial statementa of the Fiem can be obtained from the Company's registered office at 25 Bank Street,
Canary Wharf, London, E14 5JP, England,

2.  Basis of preparation

These financial staternents have been prepared n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101, “Reduced Disclosure
Framework" ("FRS 1017). FRS 101 applies the recognition and measurement requirements of Inernational Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") as adopled by the European Union ("EL") with reducead disclogures,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis under the historical cost convention and in accardance with
the Companies Act 2006, Reclassification of prior year amounts have bean made to conform with current year presentations and to
provide additional transparency and information on the nature of the balancas in these financials statements.

The faliowing exemptions from the requirernents of IFRS as adopted by the EU have been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, in accordance with FRS 101;

Certain share based payrment disclosures in raspect of Group equity instruments (IFRS 2, "Share-based payment
paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52);

*  Comparative information disclosures (paragraph 38 of IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statemants’ {"IAS 1) for
reconcilistion of share capital (paragraph 79(a)iv) of 1AS 1);

+  Statemnent of compliance to IFRS (paragraph 16, 1AS 1):

*  Third balance sheat on retrespective accounting palicy changes, restataments, or reclassifications (paragraph 40A-D,
&S 1);

*  Cash flow statemant and related notes (IAS 7 Cash flow staterments);

*  [Disclosures in relation to new or revised standards issusd but not yet effactive (paragraph 30 and 31, |AS & 'Accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and arrors');

*  Key management compensation disclosures (paragraph 17, 145 24 ‘Related Party Digclosires’ ("LAS 24")):
*  Relaled party transactions with whally owned group undertakings {45 24),

2.1 Aecounting and reporting devalopments
Standards adopted during the year ended 31 December 2018

Adoption of IFRS 9

Effective 1 January 2018, the Company adopled IFRS 2 ‘Financial instruments', which suparseded |IAS 39 'Financial Instruments
Recogmition and Measurement’. The adoption of IFRS 9 resulted in changes to the clessification and measurement of financial assets
including the impairmant of financlal assets and the presentation of gains and losses related 1o certain financial llabdities designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Refer to note 4 for mare information abouwt the changes fo the Company's accounting palicies.

Tha requirements of IFRS 8 have been applied effectivaly from 1 January 2018, As permitted by the transition provisions of IFRS
9, the Company elected not to restate comparative periods,

Refer to nete 19 for mere information about the Company's transition to IFRS 8.

Adaption of IFRS 16

Effactive 1 January 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 15 "Revenue from Centracts with Customers' ["IFRS 18"}, IFRS 15 requires
thal revanie from contracts with customers be recognised upan transfer of contral of a good or service in the amount of considaration
expected 1o be received. IFRS 15 alao changes the accounting for certain contract costs, including whether they may be offset
against revenus in the income statement, and requines additional disciosuras about revenue and contract costs,

IFRS 15 permits adoption using & full retrospective approach or & modified, cumilative effect approach wherein the guidancs is

applied only to axisting contracts as of the date of adoption, and fo new contracts ransacted afer that date. The Company adophed
IFRS 15 using the full retrospectve mathod.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements

24 Accounting and reporting developments (continued)
Standards adopted during the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Adoption of IFRS 15 (continued)

The adoption of IFRS 15 did not result in any matarial changes in the timing of recognition or in the presentation of the Company's
TEVEUE.

For mone Information about the Gompany's revenus see nole B

3, Criteal accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements generally requires management fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. Due to the nature of Company’s business and balances, no gignificant accounting
stimates or judgements were required in preparation of these financial statements.

4.  Significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of thase fimancial statements. These policies have
been zpplied consistenily in each of the years presented, unless ctherwise stated.

4.1 Foreign currency translation

Maonetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencias ars wanslated into United States ("U.5.") dollars at rates of exchange
ruling on the balance sheet date. Income and expense iems dengminated in foreign curmencies ane transkated into U5, dallars at
axcihange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Any geins or losses arising on translation are taken directly to the income
staternent,

Man-monetary items danominated in forelgn currencies that are stated at istorcal cost are translated inta U, 5. dollars at the exchange
rate rubing at the date of the transacton,

4.2 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measuwred using the currency of the primary aconomic environmant
in which the entity cperates {the “functional cemency™). U.S. dollars is considered as the funictional and prasantaton cumency of the
Caormpany.

4.3 Income and expense recognition

Assel management faes

This revanue category includes fees from Investment management and related services.

irwvestmant management fees are typically based on the value of assets undar managament and are collected and recogmised at
tha and of each pericd owver which the management senvices are provided and the value of the managed assets i3 known, The
Company has contractual arangsments with third parties for providing distribution and other services in connection with its assel
managemant ootivitios.

Amounts paid 1o thind-party servics providers are recarded in gperating expenses under fund related expense. Cperating expensas
inscluse, lout not Emited o custody costs, setiiement and exchange faes, regulatory fees, administrative, audit or legal fees. Expenses
are recognised whan the underlying contract becomes legally binding or at the agreed due date if kater.

44 Provisions

Pravisions are racognised when the Company has 8 present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past evants, it is probakle

that an outflow of sconomic benefits will be requined to settle the cbigation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be mada

18-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.5 Penslons and other post-retirement benefits
The Cermpany operates & defined contribution seheme for its employees.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan undar which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company
has no lagal or conatruetive ebligations to pay furlher contributions if the fund do=s not hold sufficient assets o pay all emplovees
the benedfits relating to empleyee servics in the current and prior periods. Qbligations for contributions to defined contribution pansion
plans are recognised as an expense and charged to the income statement on an accrual basis,

4.6 Share-based payment awards

Share-based payment awards may be made 1o employees of the Company under the Firm's incentive awards schames. The fadr
value ef any such shares, rights fo shares or share options is measured when the conditional @ward is made. This value is recognised
as the compensation expanss to the Company over the period fo which the performance crilera refate fogether with amployer's
social security expensas or other payrall taxes. All of the awards granted are equity settled. The Company estimates the keved of
forfeitures and applies this forfeiture rate at the grant date

Additionally, the conditions that must be satisfied before an employee becomes entitied o equity instruments under the Firm's
incentive programs is taken into consideration. The Firm's Retvement Eligiility rules for restricted stoek awarded as part of Incantive
programs require the accaleration of the amortisation of the award such that the award is fully expensad at the fime the retirement
ebglbility comes into farce.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash aquivalents include cash and balances at banks and loans and advances to banks with maturities of three manths
or less.

4.8 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax payable on taxable profits (curment tax) ks recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise. Income tax
recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as a current tax asset only to the extent that it is regarded a3 recoverabila by offsat
against taxable profits arsing In the current or prior period. Current tax is measwured using tax rates and fax laws thal have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

Deferved tax is pravided in full, using the Eshility method, an temporary diferences arising fram the differences betwesn the tax
bases of assels and lizbilities and their carrying amounts in the Snancial statements. Defarred tax is determinad using tax rates and
legizlation enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, which ars expected to apply when the deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is setted. Deferred tax assets and Eabilites are anky offsat when there is both a legal right and
an Intention to seftle on a net basis.

4.9 Financlal Instruments

Changes In accounting policies

On adoplion of IFRS 8 on 1 January 2018, the Company replaced or substantially revisad its accounting policies for classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabites, and impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 akso significantly amends
other standards dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosunes’ ("IFRS 7). The IFRS 7
disclosures have only been applied to the curment pariod. The comparative period notes desclosures repeat those disclosures made
in the prior year.

Thesa new or revised policies are sel out in the following table alang with the correspending policy under 1AS 30, Because the

Caormpany elected not to restate comparative periods on adeption of IFRS 8, the 1AS 38 policias should be used to understand the
differencas in accounting policies with the comparative prior period information presented in these financial stalemants.

-18.-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.9 Financial instruments {continuad)

4.9.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 8

IS 33

Financial assets and financial llabllities

i. Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company recognisas financial assets and financial

of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised using trade-dale accounting.

lizbilities when it becames & party to the contractual provigions |whaen |t bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

The Company recognises derivatives on its balance shest

instruments, Loans and receivables and financial liabilties at
amortised cost are recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractusl provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assats are recognised
on the trade-date, the date on which the Company commits o
purchase or sell the assat.

il. Classification and measurement of financlal assets and financial liabllities

On initial recognition, financial assets ane classified as
measured at amortised cost, far value through other
comprehensive income or fair value throwgh profit or loss.
The classification is based on both the business model for

charactenstics. Factors considered by the Company in

past expenance on how the cash flows for these assels wine
collected, how the assets’ performance is evaluated and
repartad to ey management personnel, how risks are
assessed and managed, and how managers are

On initial recognition, financial liabisties are classified as
measured at aither amortissd cost or fair value through prafit
or nss

managing the fnancial assets and thair contractual cash fiow | financial assets and financial kabilities designated at fair value
determining the business model for a group of assets include | liabilities held at amortised cost.

The Company classifies its financkal assets and financial
lighilities in the folkowing categories on initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial iabilWies held for trading,
through profit or less, and loans and recaivables and financial

-0 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.  Significant accounting policies (continued)
4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

4.3.1 Financial assots and financial liabilities (continued)

IFRS 9

IAS 39

Financial assets and financial Habilities

Financial assets and financial liabdities measured at amortized
cost

Loans and receivables and financial liabdities at amortized
oSt

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they are
held under a business model with tha objective to collect
contractual cash flows ("Haold o Cullect"f and thay have
contraciual terms under which cash flows ama solaly payments
of principal and interest (*SPPI"). In making the SPPI
assassment, the Company considers whether the contractual
cash fiows are consistent with a basic lending arangement
(Le., interest includes only consideration for this time value of
money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin
that is consistent with a basie landing & ment). Whera
the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volstility
that are Inconsistant with a basic lending arrangament, tha
related financial asse! is classified and measured at fair value
through profit of loss. Financial assets with embadded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are aolely payment of principal and
interest As a result of the applcation of these criteria, only
debt financial assels are eligible to be measured at amortised

Financial assels measured at amartised cost include cash and
cash equivalents and debtors.

Financial liabilifies are measured at amortised cost unless
they are held for treding or a designated as measured at fir
valua h profit or [oss. Financial liabiliies measwred at
amartised costinclude trade craditors and accruals,

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amorsed
cost are initially recognised at fair value including transaction
costs, The initéal amaount nised g subseguantly reduced
for principal rapayments and for accrued interest using the
Mfactve interast methed. In addrtion, the carrying amount of
financial assets is adjusted by recognising an axpected credit
loss allowance through to profit or Ioss,

The effective interest method is used to alocate interes!
income or interest expense over the relevant parod. The
effective inlerest rate is the rate that discounts estimated
tubure cash payments or receipts through the expected (e of
the financea! asset or financial liability or a sharter period when
appropriate, to the net carmying amount of the financial asset
ar financial [iability, The effectve interast rale is established on
initial recognition of the financial asset or financial liabdity. The
calculation of the effectiv interast rate includes all fees and
cammissions pakd or received, fransaction costs, and
discounts or premiums that ane an mtegral part of the effective
intarest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
direcily attributable to the acquisition, issuance or dispasal of
a financial asset or financial kability,

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or delerminable payments that are not quoted in an
activa market except those that are classified as held for
trading or designated ai fair value through profit or loss, Loans
mmmﬁ include cash and cash equivalents and

s

Loans and recaivables are initially recognised at fair valus
including directly refated incremantal Iransacion costs, They
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, inciuding any
provision for impairmment lossea. Interest & racognised in the
income staternant as ‘interest and similar income' using the
afective interest rate method.

Financial liabities include trade credstors and accruals and
ana recognised Initially at fair velue including diractly related
incremental ransaction cogls and subsequenty measured at
amontisad cost using thie eMactive interest method,

The effactive interest method is used to calculate the
amortised cost of a financial assst or financial liability (or a
group of financial assets or financial liabikties). |t iz a8 method
of allocating the interest incoma or interest expense over the
relevant penod, The efective inlerest rate is the rate that
exaclly discounts estimated future cash payments or recaipts
through the expecled lfe of the financlal assat or financial
liability ar, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carmying amount of the financial asset or financial kability, The
effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the
financial assat or financial Iiabillrr. The calculation af tha
affective interest rate incudes &ll fees and commissions paid
or recelved, ransaction costs, and discounts or premiums that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction
coats are incremental costs that are directly attibutabile to the
FEE'IIJ'MM issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
iability.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
4. Significant accounting policies (continwed)
4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

49,2 Impairment of financial assets

Provisions for EGL are recognised on inifial recognition of the:
financial instrument based on expectations of credit Iosses at
{hat time, The credit ioss aliowanoce incledes ECLs for financial
instruments that may default in the next 12-rmonth period for
financlal instrumants that have not sbsensed a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition (*stage 17) or
over a lifietime period for financial instruments that have
ohsened a significant increass in credit risk sinca initial
recognition [“stage 2°). The allowance alss includes lifetime
ECLs for financial instruments whese there is objective
avidance of credi-impaimment at the reporting date ("stege 2°7).
In determining the appropriate stags for a financial instrument,
the Com applies the dafinition of defawt consistant with
the Basal it of default to maintain uniformity of the
definition across the Firm.

The determination of the stage for cradit losses under the ECL
model s dependent on the measurement of a significant
incraase in cridil risk (‘'SICR'). In determining SICR, the
Company has conducted quantitative tasts, which considers,
but is not limited to, exsting risk management indicstors,
credit rating cha and reasoneble and su le
forevard-looking information. Forward-looking information
reflects & range of scenarios that incorporate macro-econamic
factors that are compased and monitored by the Firmwide
specialised econamic forecasting team

The key input componenis for the guantification nmodad
credit loss through the ECL model includes the p ility of
default EP[J&._ loss glven default ("LGD") and axposure at
dalault ("EAD"), The Company seeks to efficenty and
effectivaly leverage as much as possible existing regulalurs
and capltal frameworks where overlap is present for IFRS 9.
Diffarances obgarved content in existing frameworks
and requirements under IFRS 9 have been idenbfied and are
adjusted accondingly. The inputs to the ECL model captura
historical datasets and a ressonable and sup e
Torecasting horizon fo astimalte expected it losses,

IFRS 2 IAS 38

Impairment of financial assets Iimpairment of financial assets

The Gnm?any recognises ECL for financial #ssets that are The Company assesses at aach balance sheet date whedhes
m at amortised cost, thare is any objective evidence that a financial assat or

lie of financial assets is impaired, A financial assel o
portfolio of financial assets is dearmed to be impaired if, and
only if, thare is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more that has occumed after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event (or evenis) has an
adverse impact an tha estimated futurs cash fiows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Impairment kxsses on koans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the fnancial asset's canrying amount
and the present value of the estmated future cash fows
discou at the financial assat's affactive inlerest rate, Tha
koss is recognised in the incorme statement against the
carrying amaunt of the impaired asset on the balance sheat.
Interest continuas to be accrued on the reduced car

amount based on the original effective interest rate of the
financial assel.

Erﬁadﬁc provisions are raised ﬁalnst Ipang and recedvablas
en the Com considers that the credit worthiness of the
borrower has rated such that the recovery of the whole
or part of an outstanding advanca is in senous doubl.
Impairment provisions ane also raised to cover losses which,
altthough not specifically identified, ane known from experiance
1o have occurred in the iz of loans and receivables at
thi balance shest date. These provisions are adjusted on a
monthly basis by an appropriate charge of reversal of the
provision fulm:m an assessment of the lnans and
recaivables portfolio.

Impairment provisions are detesmined by modelling the
current gure, taking into eccownt such factors as duration
and probabilities of defautt

If, in & subsequent period, the amount of the Impaiment loss
decreases and the dacrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
Flwaualy racogrésed imparment boas shall ba reversed in the
neome staterment The amount of reversal shall not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset that excesds what the
amortised cost would have been had the impaiment net been
recognised at the date the impairment s reversed.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4.  Significant accounting pelicies (continued)
4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

4.9.3 Interest income and expense

IFRS 9 IAS 39
interest Income and interest expensze Interest income and interest expense

Unless a financial asset is credit-impaired, interest income is | Infteres! income and Bxpense ang recognised on an effective
recagnised by applying the effective interest method to the intarest rate basis, All contraciual terms of a financial
carrying amount of @ fnancial asset before adjusting forany  |instrument are considerad when estimating future cash fiows
allowance for expected credit losses. If a financial asset is
credil-Impaired, interest income is recognised by agy Iying the
affective interest rate 1o the carrying amouwnt of the financial
asset including any allowance for expected credit losses.

Interest expense on financial Esbilities is recagnised
applying the affactve interest method to the amorised cost of
financial lizbililies.

410 Derecognition of financial assets and financial labllities

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractusl right te receive cash fiows from the asssthas axpired, or has bewen transforrec
with either of the following conditions mat:

@) the Company has transfered substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset or

b the Company has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards: but has relinguished contral of tha
assel

Financial liabilities are derecagnised when they are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
4.11 Share Capital

The share capital of the Company consists of ordinary shares, classified Bs equity,

§. Segmental analysis

The Company is not in scope of IFRS & 'Operating segments’, as its debt or equity instrurments are net traded an a public market,
therefore segmental analysis of the Company's revenue and assels is not necessary.

6. Operating income and expense

ZMA 2017
$ -
Assat managemenl fees
[nvesirent managament feas 2,288,136 3,651 421
Furd costs 1,829,170} 1,879,542
468,988 1,771,879

Investment management fees represents fees for risk management and strategic ssset management sarvicas, via its fund solutions
business. Previows year income includes fees racaivad of 3803, 114 from other JPMorgan Chase undertakings partaining to backstop
agresments, Fund costs includes cperating costs paid by the Company on behall of the fund. This arrangemant may include paymeant
of all the expenses or those expenses exceeding specific limit which has been agread upon.

The Company has dsclosed operafing income instead of tumover as this reflects mare accurately the results and nature of the
Company's activities,

Prasented within Investment management fees in 2017, interest income of $48.812 and interest expansas of §4, 775 have bean
reclassified to interest and similar income and inténest expanses and similar charges respectively, to batter refiect the substance of
the balance and to canform with current year presentation, with a net income statemant impact of $nil (Fefer to note B and §)

=23 .
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

T. Otherincome

2018 2017
H H
Foreign exchange Wanslation gain 33,904 2487
8. Interest and similar income
e 21T
5 5
Interest and similar ncome;
Financial mstruments &l amoriised cost 117,398 46,813
Priar y@ar amounts have besan restated to conlorm to current year presentation, nefer nobe B,
9, Interest expenses and similar charges
e AT
H
Inlerest experse and similar charges:
Financial insbruments &l amonised cost 18,674 4778
Pt yiar amounts have been restatad to conform to curent year presentation, rafer note 6.
10. Loss before income tax
2018 1T
$ §
Loss belore income 18X 8 siated after chargang:
Audilors’ remunerafion Sar e awdit of the Company's annual financial statements 83,430 24 557
Budil-relaled assurance senices 28, BRD 24,055
Weages and salares 1,625,085 1,436,386
Soclal sacunity costs 262,064 242,178
Ok pension and bensfit costs 154 951 141,404
Share hased payments 278,572 227 568

The average manthly number of persons providing sarvices to the Compary dunng the year was 8 (2017: §).

Administrative expenses include professional fees of $540,332 (2017: $606,310), other expenses of 5458 626 (2017 $206.257).

11. Income tax

{a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current taxation
UK Carporation tax on kosa for the year

Total tax expense for the year

-94.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements (continued)

11.  Ineome tax (continued)
(b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for tha year

The tax charge for the year differs from the standard rate of comporation tax in the UK 19% (2017: 19.25%). The difierences
are explained below:

2018 21T

¥ $

Loss before income lax {2,870, 15600 1,262,322)

Lioss befone income lax mullipied by standard rate of UK corporation tax 19% (2017 19.28%) {545,330 {248.726)

Efacis of.

Mon oeduclible expenses 14,582 2782

Lass surrendered for nil consideration 530,744 245,905

Tatal tax expenas for the yoar - —
12. Directars’ emalumante and stalf cocte

2018 01T

$ $

Emalumenis® 34,218 480,935

Total contribusions to a defined cartribulion plan 742 15,261

Tolal vaiue of long term Incentive plans (LTIPs) (ncluding defermad cash) fer all directars 4,385 185,663

Murnber of directors with shares received or recaivable under LTIPs 3 1

Mumber af direciors to whom dafined conlribulion pension rights accrued 3 k|

“The amounts shown above in respect of emolurents paid to directors exclude amounts paid or due to direclors under long term
incentive plans, thi value of share options granted or exercised and benefils o which directors are entitied under any pansion
schamas.

In accordance with the Companiss Act 2008, the directors' emoluments above represent the proportion pald or payabla in
respact of qualifying services only. Directors also received emolumants for non-qualifying services, which &ne not required to
b disclosed.

Highest paid director

Far2018, the emoluments of the highest paid directer is under £200,000 which is not required to be disclosed under the reguirements
of the Companies Act 2006

Far 2017, the emalurments (sxchuding smeunts padd or due to directors under long term incentive plans {"LTIPg") and the value of
share oplions granted or exercised) of the highest paid directar wara $455 278,

The contribution to the dafined contribution scheme for the highest paid director in 2017 was $14.718.
13. Cash and cash equivalents

All bank balances ane held with JPMorgan Chase undertakings.

-25.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

14. Debtors

2018 2017
3 3
Trade deblors 1,366,872 B3T 641
Amounis owed by JPMorgan Chase undertakings — 603,114
1,366,872 1,236,788

18. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2018 2017
L] ]
Trade crediors 1,465,104 523,711
Accnials 1,076 467 72,040
2 531,671 1,485,751

Trade creditors and accruals includes balances owed to JPMorgan Chase undertakings of $543,543 (2017: $430,5642).

16, Called-up share capital

2He 2mr
] ]

Issued and fully pald share capital
1 (2017: 1) Ordinary share of £1 z #
25,000,000 (2017: 25,000,000) Ordinary shares of 1 each 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002

17. Pension costs

The Comparny participates in a defined contribution pansion scheme in the United Kingdom.

The Company recordad a total pension expense of 5104,823 for the year 2018 (2017 $93,268).

18. Share based payments

Employee stock-based awards

The ullimate parent of the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co, (the "Fim") has granted [ong-term steck-based awards to cerain key
employees under its LTIF (Long Term Incentive Plan), &3 amended and restated afective May 19,2016 and further amended and
restated effectiva May 15, 2018. Under the terms of the LTIF, as of 31 December 2018, 86 milllon shares of common stock wene
available for issuance through May 2022 (2017: 87 million shares). Thi LTIP is the only actve plan under which the Firm is currently

granting stock-based incentive awards. In the following discussion, the LTIP, plus prior Firm plans and plans assurmed as the result
of acquisitions, are referred o collectively as the "LTI Plans" and such plans constitute the Firms's stock-based incentive plans.

- 26 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18. Share based payments (continued)
Employes stock-based awards (continued)

The Firm separstely recognises compansation expense for each tranche of each award as if it were a separate award with its own
wvesting date. For each tranche granted, compensation expense is recognised in ling with how awards vest from the grant date until
the vesling date of the respective tranche, provided that the employees will not become full-career eligible during the vesling period.
Far awards with full-caraer aligibity provisions and awards granted with no future substantive servics raquirement, the Firm acorues
the estimated value of awards expected to be awarded to employees as of the grant date without giving considaration fo the Impact
ef pest-employment restrictions. For each tranche granted to smployees who will become full-career eligible during the vesting
period, compensation expensa |s recognised in line with how awards vest frem the grant date until the earlier of the employes’s full:
career eligibdity date or the vesting date of the respecive tranche.

Restricted stock units

Restricted stack units ("RSUs") are awarded at no cost to the recipient upan thesr grant, RESU's are generally granted annually and
generally vest at a rate of 50% after two years, 50% after three years, and convert into shares of common stock at the vesting data.
In addition, RSUs typically include full-career eligibility provisions, which allow amployess to conlinwe to vest upon voluntary
termination, subject to past-employment and other restrictions based on age or service-related requirements. All of these awards
are subject ta forfeiture until vested and contain clawback provisions that may result in cancellation pries e vesting under cartain
specified circumstances. RSUs entitle the recipiant to receive eash payments equivalent to any dividends paid on the underlying
common stack during the perdod the RSUs are outstanding.

Compensatien axpense for RSUS is measured based upon the number of shares granted multiplied by the stock price at the grant
date, and for employee stack options and SARs (stock appreciation rights), is messured at the grant date using the Black-Scholes
wvaluation model, Compensation expense for these awards is recognised as describad sbove,

Broad-based employee stock eptions

Mo broad-based employee stock options were granted in 2017 or in 2048, In prior years, awards were granted by the Firm
urider the Value Shasing Plan, & non-shareholder-approved plan, For each grant, tha exarcise price was equal fo the Fim's
common stock price on the grant date. The epiens become exarcisable over vamous periods and genesally expira 10 years

after the grant date.

Thiz waighted-average share price during the year ended 31 December 2048 was FN0T2 (2017, 882,01

Compensation expense related to stock-based Incentives

The total expense for the year relating to share based payments was $278 572 (2017: $227,589), all of which relates to equity settied
shane based paymentis.

18, Transition to IFRS §

The adoption of IFRS € has resulted in no matenal impact to the Company.

= 27=
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Intertrust
Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited
(
2019 10 48,554.88 529
(
KY1-
9005 190
30 3,500

State Street
Fund Services (lreland) Limited

(
2019 350,000 4,920
(
78
State
Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited
(
2019 200,000 2,811
(
78
Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(
2019 10 173 6,300
(
107-6242
2019 10 22 6,100
368
JP
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2019 10 73,272

JP JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JP
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

Fund Services (lreland) Limited

JP

J.P.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEE OF PASSIM TRUST
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the sub-funds Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund, Series 2016 JPX-Nikkei 400
Fund, Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2018 S& P 500 Fund (together the “ sub-funds’) of the PassIM Trust (the
“Trust”) , which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity/net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2019 for the sub-funds Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund, Series 2016 JPX-Nikkei 400 Fund and
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, and for the period from 27 November 2018 to 30 June 2019 for the sub-fund Series 2018 S& P
500 Fund, and the related notes to the financial statements. These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the
sub-funds as at 30 June 2019 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year/period then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRS").

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust’s unitholders as a body and for
regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISA”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsihilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for ng the Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Trust's ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materia uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosuresin the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town,
Grand Cayman

19 December 2019

273/280



J.P.

J.P.

2018 12 31

2006

2018 12 31

I1SA

FRC

1SA

I1SA

12

274/280

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FRS 101



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

EU

2006

I1SA

2018 12 31

275/280



1SA

www . Frc.org.uk/auditors responsibilities

2006

2006

2006

2019 18

16

FRC

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

276/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

277/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditors' report to the members of JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited
Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

In our opinion, J. P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited's financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of itsloss for the year
then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and applicable
law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Balance Sheet as at 31
December 2018; the Income statement, the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors responsihilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
ISAs (UK) require usto report to you when:

the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis not
appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financia statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at |east twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not al future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company’
s ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the
European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the company’s trade,
customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
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statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors Report, we a so considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Srategic Report and Directors Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsibilities set out on page 10, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such interna control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsihilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or
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the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Sheena Coutinho

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

18th April 2019
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